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2019 12
12,421,812.67 72.6
3,178,665.64 18.6
999,683.80 5.8
407,523.57 2.4
137,045.69 0.8
1,216,321.84 7.1
18,361,053.21 107.4
1,258,476.18 7.4
17,102,577.03
1,873,758,339 100-00
2019 12
1,134,396,388 56.4
290,285,075 14.4
91,294,058 4.5
37,216,249 1.8
12,515,414 0.6
111,078,080 5.5
1,676,785,265 83.3
335,009,616 16.7
2,011,794,881 100.00
2019 12

GALILEO RE L 9.22825

2020/11/6 (15,000 | 100.00f1,500,000.00f 99.07|1,486,031.25 4.2%
06NOV20 144A F

RESIDENTIAL RE 0.0

2024/12/6 (12,500 | 100.00[1,250,000.00f 98.321,228,968.75 3.5%
06DEC24 144A FRN

NORTHSHORE RE 0.0

2020/7/6 |10,000 | 100.35|1,003,549.53] 100.71)1,007,050.00] 2.8%
06JUL20 144A FRN

ARMOR RE Il LT 0.0

2023/6/8 |10,000 | 100.00f1,000,000.00] 100.43|1,004,275.00 2.8%
08JUN23 144A FRN

METROCAT RE LT 0.0

2020/5/8 |10,000 | 100.191,001,906.49| 100.33]1,003,300.00 2.8%
08MAY20 144A FRN
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CAELUS RE IV L 0.0

2024/3/6 |10,000 | 100.36|1,003,582.94] 100.28|1,002,750.00 2.8%
06MAR24 144A FRN
TAILWIND RE LT 0.0
2025/1/8 |10,000 | 100.00j1,000,000.00] 100.25/1,002,487.50 2.8%
08JAN25 144A FRN
QUEEN STR X1 6.99488
2022/4/8 110,000 | 100.20{1,002,003.12] 99.87] 998,712.50 2.8%
08APR22 144A F
INTERNATIONA 8.71263
2021/7/15(10,000 | 100.23]11,002,252.27| 99.80] 997,962.50] 2.8%
15JUL21 144A F
RESIDENTIAL RE 0.0
10 2024/12/6 (10,000 | 100.00[1,000,000.00] 99.34] 993,362.50 2.8%
06DEC24 144A FRN
KILIMANJARO 8.063
11 2021/4/20(10,000 | 100.90(1,009,048.93| 99.32| 993,187.50 2.8%
[20APR21 144A FRN
URSA RE LTD 0.0
12 2020/5/27 (10,000 | 100.12|1,001,201.88| 99.17| 991,687.50 2.8%
[27MAY20 144A FRN
GALILEI RE L 8.66063
13 2024/1/8 [10,000 | 100.80|1,008,038.04| 99.07| 990,650.00 2.8%
08JAN24 144A F
RIVERFRONT RE 0.0
14 2021/1/15(10,000 | 100.42|1,004,165.73| 98.92| 989,183.33 2.8%
15JAN21 144A FRN
SANDERS RE L 4.59125
15 2021/12/6 (10,000 | 100.02|1,000,187.13| 97.99| 979,925.00 2.8%
06DEC21 144A F
ISANDERS RE LTD 0.0
16 2022/4/7 {10,000 | 100.00|1,000,000.00| 92.43| 924,266.67 2.6%
07APR22 144A FRN
RESIDENTIAL RE 0.0
17 2024/6/6 {10,000 [ 99.31| 993,113.56| 90.25| 902,500.00 2.5%
06JUN24 144A FRN
ALAMO RE LTD 0.0
18 2024/6/7 | 7,500 | 100.00| 750,000.00| 99.92| 749,409.38 2.1%
07JUN24 144A FRN
URSA RE LTD 0.0
19 2020/12/10| 7,500 | 100.00| 750,000.00| 99.27| 744,496.88 2.1%
10DEC20 144A FRN
KILIMANJARO 6.80313
20 2026/5/5 | 7,500 | 100.00| 750,000.00| 96.59| 724,406.25 2.0%
05SMAY26 144A FR
SD RE LTD 5.80588
21 2028/10/19| 7,500 | 100.00| 750,000.00| 95.65| 717,365.63 2.0%
190CT28 144A FRN
FRONTLINE RE L 0.0
22 2026/7/6 | 7,500 | 100.00| 750,000.00| 82.23| 616,725.00 1.7%
06JUL26 144A FRN
HEXAGON REINS 6.66
23 2025/1/17 5,000 | 117.30| 586,475.18| 99.47| 558,275.12 1.6%
17JAN25 144A FRN
FLOODSMART RE 0.0
24 2024/8/6 | 5,000 | 100.00| 500,000.00| 101.44| 507,200.00 1.4%
06AUG24 144A FRN
TAILWIND RE LT 0.0
25 2025/1/8 | 5,000 | 100.00| 500,000.00| 100.38| 501,887.50 1.4%
08JAN25 144A FRN
ISANDERS RE L 4.82438
26 2020/6/5 | 5,000 | 100.17| 500,837.94| 100.33| 501,658.33 1.4%
05JUN20 144A F
URSA RE LTD 0.0
27 2026/12/10| 5,000 | 100.00| 500,000.00| 100.32| 501,583.33 1.4%
10DEC26 144A FRN
ITALITY RE IX 0.0
28 2023/1/10| 5,000 | 100.00| 500,000.00| 100.08f 500,381.25 1.4%
10JAN23 144A FRN
GALILEO RE L 19.22825
29 2020/11/6| 5,000 | 100.00| 500,000.00| 99.68| 498,393.75 1.4%
06NOV20 144A
INTERGRITY R 5.7395
30 2027/6/10| 5,000 | 100.00| 500,000.00| 99.35| 496,762.50 1.4%

10JUN27 144A FR

2019 12

2019 12
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2019 2019 12
2018 32,797,257.03 3,593,267.48 9.98 1,093
2019 23,355,259.10 2,558,802.19 10.07 1,103
2019 29,033,645.81 3,180,926.23 10.04 1,100
2019 29,042,651.34 3,181,912.88 10.07 1,103
2019 25,402,935.65 2,783,145.63 10.05 1,101
2019 25,211,144.18 2,762,132.96 10.01 1,097
2019 25,001,706.62 2,739,186.98 9.97 1,092
2019 25,177,828.35 2,758,482.87 10.04 1,100
2019 24,997,771.33 2,738,755.83 10.11 1,108
2019 23,355,259.10 2,558,802.19 10.07 1,103
2019 22,585,874.40 2,474,508.40 10.28 1,126
2019 10 22,366,874.61 2,450,514.78 10.37 1,136
2019 11 21,938,109.62 2,403,539.29 10.28 1,126
2019 12 17,102,577.03 1,873,758.34 10.34 1,133
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2018 2,674,545,379 9,780
2019 2,119,499,313 9,626
2019 2,365,861,606 9,737
2019 2,370,695,965 9,757
2019 2,295,700,427 9,727
2019 2,281,395,309 9,667
2019 2,152,814,017 9,602
2019 2,163,028,363 9,647
2019 2,152,740,969 9,689
2019 2,119,499,313 9,626
2019 2,057,659,847 9,822
2019 10 2,059,147,847 9,878
2019 11 2,018,846,001 9,778
2019 12 2,011,794,881 9,793
2017 28 2019 10

2018

2018 10 0.05 5.55 20

2019 0.02 2.19

2019 10 0.01 1.10

2017 28 2019 10 0.08 8.76 20
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2017 28 2019

2017 28 2018 0.20 2.20
1.60 1.37

2018 2019

100x
2017 28 2017 12 29 2.70 2.94
2018 2018 12 31 2.57 0.29
2019 2019 12 31 4.43 1.40

100x

2017
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<RIV (EFE2E) ISR <[H(F2E) IS 2>
(EEB(2017E95288)~ 201941 28%E) (M (201 7849H288) ~ 201981 28%E)
CEEIL) (T L) ()
106 15 10,200 e . -
| RERERGR — | DECURRRSE ) | RATED (R — | OSRARER e
1041 | — SesmRARSERITE 14 10000) | — SRSHRARAEH T _
10.2 9
G800
100 = {8 i
9.8 43 Q.ﬁﬂ'ﬂ T
96 i i i A i u .dw i i i i i i
T N0E MEE NBE NEE NEE s MEE ame M W N0E AT M e M nE

SfE URSBE N (ANE MNE THNE Sg ANE WXE e

e e

(F3FxEEED DS USERE SRR, RICEROEECH &S Eih o el THESNTLEY . LIFELTEY.

N R DR

0
e
WiNE URSE NG SN SIS 1R NISE GANE WE 1iE

<KRIL(FE2E) 752> <[A(F2E) 752>
6% 6%,
4.43
4%} ; 4%}
3%} 27 2%} 1.40
= N I_I - _ e
= Il x D
A% —370 A% '2 9‘“
20174E F0184F 20154F 20189 F019E
GEWW-?HM"-) (Iﬂmﬂ’-'lﬁﬂﬁﬁ ) {11319&1513"- 1-&952@ IUTB-fF-1ﬁ1E'") (NTQEEUEHE"-
\rEizaeE ) \208eiE3E,) \a0eE1zEne (Biimen ) (Ghesihee) (eFesa
1G5 IR (%) =100x (a=b) +b
=B QAR UONAREH+ SBENOSESOA IS
=SOSR S 1 SO e
201 7EMIES . BAIER O LM LT EiR
2017 28 2019 31 11
3,287,246.637 0 3,287,246.637
3,287,246.637 0 3,287,246.637
2017 28
2018 31 284,478.038 11,000.024 273,478.014
284,478.038 11,000.024 273,478.014
79,622.471 1,046,908.446 2,319,960.662
79,622.471 1,046,908.446 2,319,960.662
2018
2019 31 0 53,287.337 220,190.677
0 53,287.337 220,190.677
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100,000 0.01

10,000,000

+ KNBORERTICEIVEABEOMEOXIEZ FENEL, BREONTHEELLEY
HRRMEELCBSICE. FEA - RE(ERL)OBPAHDOPIEE U IFELCEZM T
JEBA-BEERV)OSEAGEMHT LN BUET.

* BPAH T AT ICIVEROREVIC2HBEENUET .

M- ABOEA WA -IEEABOEA

AF e AN

(o Dee B2
(@) || =

(W DHSEE [#|w
(o) MECEE (=],

iﬂ'ﬁﬁ-ﬂ‘ﬂEIHH -

B! |

B[FroEERD&E. BRIESESIE. Ca—3— 7SR E. ORISR B LU 75297 LR E SN R HEE [ EfF > T LSBT
MRS AT -3 -20ERRSTERLTHEEtHERLAFONEEREE 7. ) B R 77 AR DLW T ERS H UM
EFi &Mt ETOENEHLFEOEDERCHITSEREBENET.,

#FEClE. BROREHREELVWET. IMRBEE. 23— 7R8NS RS BT T VSR T 22— 33— 70T e
LTLEB(THESEFEROERES Y, ). 8L R TR ol T RS i R T A 2N R ST OO ELLET.,

#[HS(E&E. EEORmI7r /RS ER LT S R TRl BRRESI I AL LT B st TR ET 2 &40 TESTOMO
HELWAET,

®EMNESIER. BAZERRSMEL O ORI EESCHITSEN S HMELLB AR, 5 BoEEREREELWVET.

= EPEED A, M-8 (ML) S SCEr e O SERL TR EROE0DELLET. A OSSR DA ECrSERL C4Enas0
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90

90

60

2022 10,000,000

2163 12
60

10

90
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131

23 103

2019 12 30
109.56
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CAT
2019 31
2019 31
2019 31 2018 31
usb usb
355,872 38,989 1,135,588 124,415
2019 USD 43,490,110
2018 Usb 56,720,688 4,5,7 40,179,422 4,402,057 55,346,791 6,063,794
4,5 486,483 53,299 50,480 5,531
411,368 45,069 445,585 48,818
1,993,000 218,353

52,727 5,777 101,973 11,172
43,478,872 4,763,545 57,080,417 6,253,730
4,5 20,994 2,300 20,557 2,252
8 129,325 14,169 142,610 15,624
150,319 16,469 163,167 17,877
43,328,553 4,747,076 56,917,250 6,235,854

usb usb
JPY 2,119,759,848 2,674,545,379

usD 19,970,416 24,119,993
usb 23,358,137  2,559,117,490 32,797,257  3,593,267,477

7 220,190.677 273,478.014

7 2,319,960.662 3,287,246.637

usb usb
JPY 9,627 9,780
usD 10 1,096 10 1,096
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CAT
2019 31
2017 15
2019 31 2018 31
usD usD

3,580,428 392,272 2,361,457 258,721
(2,136,483) (234,073) (1,369,806) (150,076)
477,194 52,281 16,936 1,856
1,921,139 210,480 1,008,587 110,501
10,542 1,155 16,594 1,818
16,434 1,801 (75,070) (8,225)
1,948,115 213,435 950,111 104,094
213 23 737 81
344,647 37,760 333,624 36,552
73,877 8,094 68,412 7,495
10,400 1,139 10,407 1,140
13,304 1,458 12,289 1,346
58,968 6,461 57,153 6,262
295,480 32,373 285,411 31,270
24,624 2,608 23,784 2,606
121,452 13,306 102,471 11,227
942,775 103,290 894,288 97,978
1,005,340 110,145 55,823 6,116

262,589 28,769
742,751 81,376 55,823 6,116

66/216



2019

2017

2018

2019

15

31

31

31

67/216

EDINETOOOO

DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CAT
2019 31
usD

57,834,906 6,336,392
(973,479) (106,654)
55,823 6,116
56,917,250 6,235,854
793,271 86,911
(15,124,719) (1,657,064)
742,751 81,376
43,328,553 4,747,076
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CAT
2019 31
31
2017 15
2019 31 2018 31
usD usD

742,751 81,376 55,823 6,116
(4,653,976) (509,890)  (63,727,046) (6,981,935)
17,684,862 1,937,553 7,010,450 768,065
199,692 21,878 (4,092) (448)
1,936,791 212,195 1,373,897 150,524
(435,566) 47,721) (29,923) (3,278)

(1,993,000) (218,353)
49,246 5,395 (101,973) (11,172)
(13,285) (1,456) 142,610 15,624
34,217 3,749 (445,585) (48,818)
13,551,732 1,484,728 (55,725,839) (6,105,323)
793,271 86,911 57,834,906 6,336,392
(15,124,719) (1,657,064) (973,479) (106,654)
(14,331,448) (1,570,153) 56,861,427 6,229,738
(779,716) (85,426) 1,135,588 124,415

1,135,588 124,415
355,872 38,989 1,135,588 124,415
3,739,496 409,699 1,912,234 209,504
(23) ®) @737) (81)
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CAT

2013 12 74
12
2017 15 2017 28
Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand Cayman, KY1-9007, Cayman lIslands

CAT

CAT

CAT CAT

NDF

26
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CAT

2019 31

USA

IFRS

IFRS 10 IFRS 12 IAS 27 2012
2017 15
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IFRS

IFRS

IFRS

IFRS

IFRS

IFRS

2018

FVTPL

IAS 39

IFRS

IFRS

IFRS

IAS 39

IFRS

IAS 39
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CAT

2019 31

IFRS

IAS 39

IAS 39

FVOCI
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CAT
2019 31
IFRS

IAS 39 IFRS IAS 39 IFRS
usb usb
1,135,588 1,135,588
FVTPL FVTPL 55,346,791 55,346,791
FVTPL 50,480 50,480
445,585 445,585
101,973 101,973
57,080,417 57,080,417

IAS 39 IFRS IAS 39 IFRS
usb usb
20,557 20,557
142,610 142,610
163,167 163,167
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CAT
2019 31
IFRS
2018 IFRS IAS 39
IFRS
IAS 39 IFRS
2018 31 2018
usb usb
1,135,588 1,135,588
445,585 445,585
101,973 101,973
1,683,146 1,683,146
2018 IFRS
IFRS IAS 39 ECL
FVOCI
IFRS IAS 39
2018 IFRS
IFRS
IFRS 2018
2018
IFRS IAS 39
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FVTPL

usD

IFRS

usD

2018
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CAT

2019 31

usD
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CAT

2019 31

IFRS

2018

FVTPL
FVTPL

SPPI

FVTPL

SPPI

FVPL
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2018
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CAT

2019 31

SPP1



- FVTPL

2018

2018
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CAT

2019 31
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CAT
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CAT

2019 31

CAT

Swiss Re Capital Markets Aon Securities Inc. Willis Towers Watson

GC Securities CAT
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2018

31

IFRS

ECL

IFRS
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CAT

2019 31

ECL



FVTPL

FVTPL

FVTPL
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CAT

2019 31

FVTPL



FVTPL

IAS 32
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CAT

2019 31

50



CAT

CAT

SPV

CAT

CAT

CAT

CAT

CAT

CAT

CAT

CAT

82/216

EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CAT

2019 31

CAT

SPV



JPY

CAT

CAT

usb

CAT
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2019 31
usb
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CAT
2019 31
2019 31 2018 31
2019 31

UsD
735,794 1.83
2,368,828 5.90
27,639,137 68.79
6,471,897 16.11
234,003 0.58
2,729,763 6.79
40,179,422 100.00

2018 31

UsD
502,138 0.91
5,246,356 9.48
36,216,069 65.43
8,859,809 16.01
4,522,419 8.17
55,346,791 100.00

CAT
CAT
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CAT
2019 31
2019 31
UsD
25,471,060 63.39
5,954,316 14.82
714,600 1.78
2,250,151 5.60
5,068,704 12.62
720,591 1.79
40,179,422 100.00
2018 31
UsD
29,088,158 52.56
12,309,055 22.23
500,988 0.91
4,113,050 7.43
9,335,540 16.87
55,346,791 100.00
CAT
CAT 10
35
VaR
2019 31 1 VaR 17,859,064 2018

21,808,867 100
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CAT
2019 31
2019 31

usD usD usb usb usD usb
20,604,638 19,574,784 40,179,422
486,483 486,483
411,368 411,368
1,993,000 1,993,000
52,727 52,727
355,872 355,872
20,960,510 19,574,784 - - 2,943,578 43,478,872
20,994 20,994
129,325 129,325
150,319 150,319
20,960,510 19,574,784 2,793,259 43,328,553

2018 31

usb usb usb usb usb usb
13,996,500 41,350,291 55,346,791
50,480 50,480
445,585 445,585
101,973 101,973
1,135,588 1,135,588
15,132,088 41,350,291 598,038 57,080,417
20,557 20,557
142,610 142,610
163,167 163,167
15,132,088 41,350,291 434,871 56,917,250
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2018

2019

bps

31

31

31
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2019 31
25
25 bps 25 bps
usD usb
(10,045) 10,045
25 bps 25 bps
usD usb
(13,837) 13,837

0.1 2018 0.1
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CAT
2019 31
2019 31 2018
31

JPY EUR

2019 31 usD usD usD

34,953 6,663 41,616

1,369,053 1,369,053

8,487 8,487

30,594 30,594

72,210 1,377,540 1,449,750

19,930,974 (1,377,492) 18,553,482

20,003,184 48 20,003,232
JPY EUR

2018 31 usD usD usD

6,389 6,389

3,725,593 3,725,593

30,072 30,072

60,082 60,082

66,471 3,755,665 3,822,136

24,220,836 (3,709,858) 20,510,978

24,287,307 45,807 24,333,114
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2019
20,003,232

CAT

31

2018

1,000,161

24,333,114

CAT

CAT

2018

EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CAT

2019 31

2019 31
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CAT
2019 31
2019
31 2018 31
2019 31
uSsD
355,872 Al
40,179,422 Al
486,483 Al
2018 31
usb
1,135,588 Al
55,346,791 Al

50,480 Al
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CAT

2019 31

CAT



2022

2163 12

10,000,000
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CAT
2019 31
31 2018 31
USD USD USD USD
40,179,422 40,179,422
486,483 486,483
40,665,905 40,665,905
(20,994) (20,994)

(20,994) (20,994)
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CAT
2019 31
usD UsD UsD UsD
55,346,791 55,346,791
50,480 50,480
55,397,271 55,397,271
(20,557) (20,557)
(20,557) (20,557)
CAT
CAT
CAT
CAT
CAT

CAT
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CAT
2019 31

USD UsD UsD

486,483 (20,994) 465,489

486,483 (20,994) 465,489

USD usD USD

50,480 (20,557) 29,923

50,480 (20,557) 29,923

UsD UsD

486,483 21,068,475

(20,994) (2,980,482)
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CAT
2019 31
UsD USD
50,480 24,170,356
(20,557) (3,689,301)
486,483 (20,994) 465,489
486,483 (20,994) 465,489
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CAT
2019 31
(20,994) 20,994
(20,994) 20,994
2018 31
50,480 (20,557) 29,923
50,480 (20,557) 29,923
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CAT
2019 31
(20,557) 20,557
(20,557) 20,557
2017 15
2019 31 2018 31
usD usD
3,590,970 2,378,051
(199,692) 4,092
(1,936,791) (1,373,898)
41,628 (12,987)
435,566 29,923

1,931,681 1,025,181
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2019 31

31 273,478.014 3,287,246.637
79,622.471
(53,287.337) (1,046,908.446)
31 220,190.677 2,319,960.662
15

284,478.038 3,287,246.637

(11,000.024)
31 273,478.014 3,287,246.637

10,000
100,000
0.01
1,000
10,000,000

10.00
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2019 31



2019
2018

0.12

31

5,000

58,968
9,176
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CAT

2019 31

262,589

2018 57,153
2018 11,554



246,176
38,232

2019 31
8,333,283

344,647
53,525

2018 238,303

2018 48,143
2019 12 23
21,978
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CAT
2019 31
0.70
2018 333,624
2018 67,400
0.50
10,000
179,945

2019 12 23
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Tokio Marine CAT Bowd Frond
Finarrcial statemrenis
Auwgust 31, 2019

Statement of financial position
August 31, 2019

Nole August 31, 2019 August 31, 2018
LSy USDr
Assets
Cash 355,872 1.135.38%8
Investment in debt instruments. at fair value
{cost: 2019 TUSDA3,490,110, 2018: USDS6,720,688) 4.5.7 40,179,422 55.346,791
Dervative financial instruments, at far value 4.5 486,483 50,480
Interest receivable 411.368 445,585
Unsettled trades receivable 1,993,000 -
Other assets 52,927 101,973
Total assets 43,478,872 57080417
Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments, at fair value 4.5 20,994 20,557
Acerued expenses 8 129,325 142,610
Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to
the holders of redeem able units) 150,319 163,167
Net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable
units 43,328,353 56,917,250
Met assets attributable to:
JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class units (JPY) 2.119,759.848 2674545379
IPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class umts (LUSI3) 19,970,416 24119993
USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class units (US12) 3,358,137 32.797.257
Units outstanding:
JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class units 7 220190677 273.478.014
USE Semi-Annual Distnibution Class units 7 2.319.960.662 3.287.246.637
Met asset value per unit:
JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class umits (JPY) 9627 Q780
LISD Semi=-Annual Distribution Class units (UUSI)) 10 10

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements,
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Statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended August 31, 2019

Mote

Revenue

Net income/loss from financial instruments at FVTPL'
Interest income i)
Net (loss) on investments in debt instruments o
Net gain on currency forwardsderivatives 6

Interest on cash

Net exchange gain/{loss) on foreign currency

transactions”

Net investment gainTotal revenue

Interest expense

Investment Manager fees 89

Administration fees

Trustee fees o8

Custodian fees

Fee Agent foes 89

Distributor fees

Agent member company fees
Other fees

Total operating expenses

Change in net assets atiributable to the holders off
redeemable units before distributions

Distributions to holders of redeemable unitsto the
holders of redeemable units

Changes in net asseis atiributable to the holders of
redeemable units after distributions
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Tokio Marine CAT Bond Fund
Financial sacments
Angust 31, 2019

For the period
August 15, 2017

For the year (date of

ended  establishment) to
August 31,2019 August 31, 2018
USD USD
3.580.428 2.361.457
(2,136,483) (1.369,806)
477.194 16,936
1,921,139 1,008,587
10,542 16,594
16,434 {75,070}
1,948,115 950,111
213 737
344,647 333,624
73,877 68,412
10,400 10,407
13,304 12,289
58,968 57.153
295 480 285,411
24.624 23,784
121.452 102,471
942,773 894,288
1,005,340 55,823
262,589
742,751 55,823

This relates to net incomedoss from financial instriments measured at FVTPL including realised and
wnrealised gamsfdosses on financial assels af fair value through profit and loss (net loss on
investments in debt instruments and net gain on devivatives), and interest income.

This relates to realised and unrealised gainloss on foreign currencies, spol foreign exchange
confracts and receivables’pavables denominated in foreign currencies.

The accompanving notes form an integral part of these financial statements, 5
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Tokio Marivne CAT Bond Fund
Financial starcmenis

Awgnst 31, 2619
Statement of changes in net assets attributable to the holders of
redeemable units
For the year ended August 31, 2019
Note Total
UsD
Balance at August 15, 2017 (date of establishment) -
Issue of units 57,834,906
Repurchase of units (973,479
Change in net assets attributable to the holders of
redeemable units 55.823
Balance at August 31, 2018 56,917,250
[ssue of units 793,271
Repurchase of units {15.124.71
Change in net assets attributable to the holders of
redeemable units 742,751
Balance at 31 August 2019 43,328,553
The accompanving notes fornt an integral part of these financial statements. 6
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Statement of cash flows
For the vear ended August 31, 2019

Operating activities

Changes in net assets attributable to the holders of redesmable units after

diﬁtﬁhuﬁun
Purchase of debt instruments
Proceeds from sale of debt instruments
Adjustment for items not invelving cash:
Eealised (loss) gain on debt instruments
Unrealised loss on debt instruments
MNet unrealised gain on derivatives
Met changes in non-cash operating balances:
Unsettled trades receivable
Other assels
Acerued expenses
Interest receivable
Net cash Mows generated from/f(used in) operating activities

Financing activities

Proceeds from units issued

Payment due to repurchase of units
Cash Mows from financing activities
Met (decrease)fincrease in cash

Cash at beginning of the year/period

Cash at end of the vear/period

Supplementary information on cash flows from operating activities

Interest received
Interest paid
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Tokio Marine CAT Bond Fund
Firnancial staterenis

Argust 31, 2009

For the period
August 15, 2017

For the yvear (date of
ended  establishment) to
August 31,2019 August 31, 2018
LS USD
742,751 35823
(4,6533,976) (63, 727,046)
17,684,862 7.010,450
199,692 {4.092)
1,936,791 1.373.897
(433.366) (29.923)
{1,993 (10) =
49,246 {101,973)
(13.285) 142,610
34,217 (445.585)
13.551.732 (55, 725,83%)
793,271 57834906
(15.124.719) {973.479)
(14,331 44%) 56,801,427
(779.716) 1.135.588
1.135 588 .
355,872 1,135,588
3,739,496 1.912.234
(23) (737)

The accompanying notes form an imtegral part of these financial statements,
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Tokio Marive CAT Bond Frird
Finanecial stalements
Amngnest 34, 2009

Motes to financial statements
1 Domicile and activities

Tokio Marine CAT Bond Fund (the “Trust™) is a series-trust of Credit Swsse Universal Trust
{Cayman) III (the *Master Trust™). The Master Trust is an exempted unit trust registered under
Section 74 of the Trust Law of the Cayman Islands on December 2, 2013 and registered under the
Mutual Funds Law of the Cayman Islands on December 2, 2013, The Trust was established on
August 15, 2017 and commenced operations on September 28, 2017. The address of its registered
office is 190 Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand Cayman, KY 1-9007, Cayman Islands.

The investment objective of the Trust i3 to seck to provide investors with income gains through
investing mainly in catastrophe bonds ("CAT Bonds™)y In addition, the Trust can invest in
insurance linked securities other than CAT Bonds, insurance derivatives linked bonds and cash
and money market securities {(together with CAT Bonds. the “debt instruments™). CAT Bonds are
debt instruments that transfer the risk of catastrophic events from entities such as insurance
companies, reinsurance companies, corporations and governments to the capital markets.
Investors receive a risk premium in the form of a yield in exchange for bearing the risk of losses
from pre-defined natural and non-natural catastrophic events, such as earthquakes, windstorms,
maortality and other catastrophe related events. The principal amount of any given CAT Bond will
be potentially reduced (and subject to partial or, in some cases, total loss) upon the occurrence of
an event to which the CAT Bond is contractually linked,

It is expected that the assets of the Trust will mainly be denominated in (but not limited to)
currencies such as US Dollars and Euro. Where practicable, the Investment Manager seeks to
hedge the currency exposure of assets attributable to a Class and denominated in currencies other
than the currency of denomination of that Class with the currency of denomination of that Class,
The Investment Manager generally can use spot contracts, forward foreign exchange contracts
and non-deliverable forwards (including cross forward foreign exchange contracts) (together, the
“Currencey Forwards™) in order to attempl to hedge against currency fluctuations,

The Trust has 2 elasses of units: USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units (denominated in US

Dollar), and JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units {denominated in Japanese Yen) (each a
“Class™), as defined in Appendix 26 of the Offering Memorandum relating to the Master Trust,
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Tokio Marive CAT Bond Frirvd
Finanecial stafements
Amngnest 34, 2009

Notes to financial statements (continued)

1 Domicile and activities (continued)

Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited, a company incorporated under the Companics
Law {as amended) of the Cayman Islands, has been appointed as the Trust’s manager, (the
“Manager”) under the Trust Deed. The Manager is responsible for investing the assets of the
Trust and has the power to issue units in different classes and'or series and to repurchase units.
The Manager has delegated all the rights, obligations, privileges, powers, duties, trusts and
discretions vested in the Manager by the terms of the Trust Deed with respect to the investment,
management and re-investment of the assets of the Trust and responsibility for the discretionary
day=to=day investment decision=making over the portfolio of debt instruments (the "Sub=Advised
Portfolio") and the management of the Currency Forwards to Tokio Marine Asset Management
Co., Ltd. {the “Investment Manager™). The Investment Manager has in turn delegated
responsibility for the day-to-day investment decision making over the Sub-Advised Portfolio to
Tokio Marine Asset Management (LTSA), Ltd.. (the “Sub-Investment Manager™).

Credit Suisse International {the “Fee Agent™) is responsible for paying certain ongoing and
operational costs and expenses of the Trust, including manager fee, auditing costs that are not
included in the audit fees and expense, annual fees payable in respect of the Trust or the Master
Trust to government bodies and agencies, and insurance costs (if any) (the “Ordinary Costs™).

The Trust’s trustee is Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited (the “Trustee™) and administrator is The
Bank of New York Mellon, Singapore Branch (the “Administrator™),

All references to net assets thronghout this document refer to net assets attributable to the holders
of redeemable units unless otherwise stated.

2 Basis of preparation

These financial statements are preparcd in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS™.

fa) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss, which are measured at fair value.

The Trust has adopted Investment Entitics { Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27)
(2012) (the amendmenis) with a date of initial application of August 15, 2017 (date of
establishment). Management concluded that the Trust meets the definition of an investment
entity.
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Tokio Marive CAT Bond Frird
Finanecial stalements
Amngnest 34, 2009

Notes to financial statements (continued)

2

Basis of preparation (continued )
{B) Change in significant accounting policies

The Trust has initially applied IFRS 9 from September 1, 2018, As permitted by the transition
provisions of IFES 9, comparative information throughout these financial statements has not
generally been restated to reflect the requirements of the standard, Therefore, financial
instrumenis in the comparative period are still accounted for in accordance with [AS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

fih IFRS © Financial instruments

IFES 9 sets out requirements for recognising and measuring financial assets, financial
liabilities and some contracis to buy or sell non-financial items. This standard replaces
LAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measwrement,

As a result of the adoption of IFRS 9, the Trust is required to adopt consequential
amendments to LAS [ Presentation of Financial Staternents, which require:

- Impairment of financial assets to be presented in a separate ling ilem in the statement of
comprehensive income. Under TAS 39, impairment was recognised when losses were
incurred. The Trust did not previously report any incurred losses; and,

- Separate presentation in the statement of comprehensive income of interest revenue
calculated using the effective interest method.

The adoption of IFRS 9 had no material impact on the net assets attributable to the
holders of redeemable units of the Trust.

Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

IFES 9 contains three principal classification categories for financial asscts: measured at
amortised cost, fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) and fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCT). The classification of financial assets under IFRS 9 is
generally based on the business model in which a financial asset s managed and its
contractual cash flow characteristics. IFRS 9 eliminates the previous IAS 39 categories of
held of maturity, loans and receivables, and available for sale. For more detailed analysis
of these classifications under IFR.S 9, see Note 3.

The adoption of IFRS 9 has not had a significant effect on the Trust’s accounting policies
related to financial liabilities and derivative financial instruments. For an explanation of
how the Trust classifies and measures financial instruments and accounts for related gains
and losses under IFRS 9, see Note 3.

The following table and the accompanying notes below explain the original measurement
categories under IAS 39 and the new measurement categories under IFRS 9 for the
Trust’s financial assets and financial liabilities as at September 1, 20138,

10
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Tokio Marive CAT Bond Frirvd
Financial stalements
Angnest 34, 2009

Notes to financial statements (continued)
2 Basis of preparation (continued )
(B) Change in significant accounting policies (contimied)
(id IFRE @ Financial mnstruments (contimed)

Classification and measurement of financial assets and linancial liabilities (continued)

Assels Original New Original New carrying
classification classification carrying amount under
under LAS 39 under IFRS 9 amount under IFRS 9
IAS 39
USDy USD
Cash Laoans and Amaortised cost 1,135,588 1,135,588
receivables
Investment in debt Diesignated as Mandatorily at 55,346,791 35,346,791
instruments, at fair value at FVTPL FVTPL
Dierivative financial Held-for- Mandatorily at 50,480 50,480
instruments, at fair value trading FVTPL
Interest receivable Loans and Amortised cost 445,585 445,583
receivables
Oither assets Loans and Amortised cost 101,973 101,973
receivables
Total assets 57.080.417 37.080.417
Liabilities Original New Original New carrying
classification classification carrying amount under
under TAS 39 under [IFRS 9 amount under IFRS 9
IAS 39
UsD UsD
Dierivative financial Held-for-  Held-for-trading 20,557 20,557
instruments, at fair trading
value
Accrued expenses Amortised cost Amortised cost 142.610 142,610

Total liabilities

(excluding net assets

attributable to the

holders of

redeemable units) 163,167 163.167

11
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Tokio Marive CAT Bond Frirnd
Finanecial stafements
Awngnest 34, 2009

Notes to financial statements (continued)
2 Basis of preparation (continued)
(B) Change in significant acconnting policies (contined)
i} IFRS 9 Financial instruments {contimeed)
Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

The following table reconciles the carryving amounts of financial assets under [AS 39 to the
carrying amounts under IFRS 9 on transition to IFRS 9 on September 1, 20138,

Assels IAS 39 carrying  Reclassification Remeasurement IFRS 9 carrying
amount at amount at

August 31, 2018 September 1, 2018

UsD UsD

Cash 1135588 - - 1,135,588
Interest receivable 445 585 - - 445 585
Other assets 101,973 - - 101.973
Total amortised cost 1,683,146 - - 1,683,146

Im pairment of financial assels

The effect of adopting IFRS 9 on the carrving amounts of financial assets at Seplember 1,
2018 relates solely on the new impairment requirements,

IFR.S 9 replaces the “incurred loss™ model in [AS 39 with an “expected credit loss™ (ECL)
model. The new impairment model applics to financial asscts measured at amortised cost
and debt investment at FVOCL, but not to investmenis in equity instruments. Under IFES 9,
eredit losses are recognised carlier than under TAS 39,

The Trust has determined that the application of IFRS 9%s impairment requirements at
September 1. 2018 has no signilicant impact on financial assets measured at amortised cost
due to insignificant credit risk exposed to these items.

Transition

Changes in accounting policies resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9 have been applicd
retrospectively, excepl as deseribed below,

- Comparative periods have not generally been restated. Differences in the carrving
amounts of financial assets resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9 are recognised in net
assets attributable to the holders of redeemable units as at September 1. 20018, Accordingly,
the information presented for 2018 does not reflect the requirements of IFRS 9, but rather
those of TAS 39.

12
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Takio Marisne CAT Basd Frird
Finanecial stafements
Amngnest 34, 2009

Notes to financial statements (continued)
2 Basis of preparation (continued )
(B Change in significant accounting policies {continued)
(il [FRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)
Transition (continued)

- The following assessment has been made on the basis of the facts and circumstances that
existed at the date of initial application.
o The determination of the business model within which a financial asset is held.
o The revocation of previous designations of certain financial asscts as measured
at FVTPL.

fc) Functional and presentation currency

The functional and presentation currency of the financial statements is the United States
Dellar (“TISD™) which reflects the fact that the Trust’s operations, reporting to unitholder as
well as settlement of the majority of fees and expenses are carried out in TI5D.

{dl Use af estimates and fudgements

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the Trust's
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Eevisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods,

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in
applving accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the financial statements are described in Notes 4 and 5,

fel New standards and interpretations not vet adopted
A number of new standards and amendments to standards are effective for annual periods
beginning afler September 1, 2018 and earlier application is permitted: however, the Trust

has not early applied these new or amended standards in preparing these financial statements
as they do not have a material effect on the Trust’s financial statements,
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Notes to financial statements (continued)
3 Significant accounting policies
The significant accounting policics sct out below have been applicd consistently by the Trust.
{a) Financial assets and financial liabilities
{1} Recognition
Finanecial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised initially
on the trade date at which the Trust becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument, Other financial assets and labilities are recognised on the date they are
originated,

Financial liabilitics are not recognised unless one of the partics has performed or the
contract is a derivative contract not exempted from the scope of IFRS 9.

fii) Classification
Classification of financial assets - Policy applicable from September [, 2018
On imitial recognition, the Trust classifies financial assets as measured at amortised cost
or FVTPL. A financial asset is measured at amortised cost iff it meets both of the

following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

1) It is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash fows; and,

ii) Its comtractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
represent payments of principal and interest (SPPI).

All other financial assets of the Trust are measured at FVTPL. A financial asset is
measured at fair value through profit or loss if any of the following apply:

i) Its contractual terms do not give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are solely
payments of prineipal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding;

i) Itis not held within a business model whose objective is either to collect contractual
cash flows, or to both collect contractual cash flows and sell;

i) At initial recognition, il is irmevoeably designated as measured at FVPL when doing
so climinates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilitics or recognising the
gains and losses on them on different bases,
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Notes to financial statements (continued)

3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
{a) Financial assets and financial liabilities (contimed)
fit) Classification (contimeed)
Classification of financial assets - Policy applicable from September §, 2018 (continued)

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPL the Trust considers the
contractual terms of the mstrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash
flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Trust
considers:

- conlingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows:
- leverage features;
= prepayment and extension features;

- terms that limit the Fund's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse
features ), and

- features that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of
interest rates).

The Trust has determined that it has two business models:

- Held-to-collect business model: this mecludes cash, interest receivable, unsettled trades
receivable and other assets. These financial assets are held to collect contractual cash
flow.

- Other business model: this includes investment in debt instruments and dervative
financial instruments. These financial assets are mamaged and their performance is
evaluated, on a fair value basis, with frequent sales taking place.

In making an asscssment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset
is held, the Trust considers all of the relevant information about how the business is
managed, including:

- the documented investment stralegy and the execution of this strategy in practice. This
includes whether the investment strategy focuses on caming contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile. matching the duration of the financial
assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising
cash flows through the sale of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio s evaluated and reporied to the Trust's
management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets
held within that business model) and how those risks are managed,
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Notes to financial statements (continued)

3

Significant accounting policies (continued)
{a) Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

fit) Classification (contimeed)

Classification of financial assets - Policy applicable from September §, 2018 (continued)

- how the investment manager is compensated: e.g. whether compensation is based on
the fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the
reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales activity,

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for
derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Fund's
continuing recognition of the assets,

The Trust classified financial assets into the following categories:
- Financial assets designated at FVTPL
o Investment in debt instruments
o Derivative financial instruments
- Financial assets at amortised cost
o Cash, interest receivable, unsettled trades receivable and other assets. These are
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in the current market.
Classification of financial liabilities - Policy applicable from September 1, 2018

The Trust classified financial liabilitics into the following categories:

= Financial liabilities at held-for-trading
= Derrvative financial instruments

= Financial habilities at amortised cost
o Accrued expenses.

{iii) Measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured
imitially at fair value, with transaction costs recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income, Financial assets and financial liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss are
measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue.
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Notes to financial statements (continued)

3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
fa) Financial assets and financial liabilittes fcontimeed)
(i) Measurement {contined)

Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets and financial liabilities classified at
fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with changes in their fair value
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income,

Financial assets and liabilities other than those at fair value through profit or loss are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less impairment losses,
i any. This is considered to approximate fair value due to the short-lerm or immediate
nature of these instruments.

“Fair value™ iz the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

When available, the Trust measures the fair value of an instrument using quoted prices in
an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are
readily and regularly available and represent actual and regularly cccurning market
transactions on an arm’s length basis. If a market for a financial instrument is not active,
the Trust establishes fair value using a valuation technique agreed by the Trustee.
Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length transactions between
knowledgeable, willing parties (if available), reference to the current fair value of other
instruments that are substantially the same and other pricing models. Alternatively the
fair value may be determined using reputable pricing sources (such as pricing agencies)
or indicative prices from bond/debt market makers. Broker quotes as obtained from the
pricing sources may be indicative and not executable or binding. The Trust would
exercise judgment and estimates on the quantity and quality of pricing sources used.

Realised gains or losses on sale of debi instruments are caleulated using the weighted
average cost method. The unrealised gains or losses represent the difference between the
carrying amount of a financial instrument at the beginning of the reporting period or
transaction price when purchased and its carrying amount at the end of the period.
Realised and unrealised gains or losses on investments are recorded in the statement of
comprehensive income.

fiv) Investment in debt instruments

The Trust holds investments in CAT Bonds whose prices are governed by a specific
pricing methodology following the Trust’s offering documents. The CAT Bonds®
valuation is based solely on the prices received from 4 brokers: Swiss Re Capital Markets,
Aon Securitics Ine., Willis Towers Watson Secunties and GC Sccuritics. The CAT
Bonds™ price is calculated based on the available brokers' average mid-price, which is
derived by averaging their bid and ask prices. In the case where the total divergence of
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Notes to financial statements (continued)
3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
{a) Financial assets and financial liabilities (contimed)
(iv) Invesiment in debt instruments fcontined)

average ask price and average bid price against average mid-price equals or exceeds 5%,
such bond will be valued using the average bid price.

fvi Investment in derivative financial instruments
The Trust holds investments in derivative financial instruments in the form of currency
forward contracts. The fair value of the cwrency forward contracts is the exchange
difference between the contract rate and the applicable forward rate.,

{vil Impairment

IFES 9 requires the Trust to recognise loss allowances for ECL on financial assets
measured at amortised cost,

As at August 31, 2019, the Trust held cash, interest receivable, unsettled trade receivable
and other assets as financial assels measured at amortised cost, which is not under the
seope of ECL model. Hence, the applicable of IFRS 9's impaimment requirement at
September 1, 2018 has no significant impact on the Trust’s financial statements,

fvif) Derecognition
The Trust derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies

for derecognition in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9.

The Trust derccognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged, cancelled or expired.

B Ceash

Cash comprise amounts with original maturitics of three months or less deposited into current
accounts held at an international financial institution.
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Notes to financial statements (continued)

3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
fc) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and f{inancial labilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of financial position when, and only when, the Trust has a legal right to set off the
recognised amounts and it intends either to settfle on a net basis or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The format adopted in these financial statements is to
present the gross amounts of the financial assets and financial liabilities in the statement of
financial position, while the offsetting and net amount of the financial assets and financial
liabilities are presented under Note § — Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities.

el Unseitled trades receivable

Unsettled trades receivable represent amounts receivable for investments sold but not vet
settled on the statement of financial position date.

fel FExpenses

All operaling expenses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on an
acerual basis,

if} Interest on cash

Interest on cash is recognised on a time-proportionate basis using the effective interest
method.

(g} Net incomeToss from financial instruments at FVTPL

Met income from financial instruments at FVTPL includes net loss on investments in debt
instruments, net gain on derivative financial instruments and interest income, which are
disclosed separately in the statement of comprehensive income. Net realised gain or loss from
financial instruments at FVTPL is calculated using the weighted average cost method.

Wet loss on investments in debt instruments comprises of all realised and unrealised fair value
changes. The realised gain or loss from financial instruments at FVTPL represents the
difference between the cost of a financial instruments and its settlement price of the sale trade.

The unrealised gain or loss represents the difference between the carrying amount of a
financial instrument at the beginning of the period, or the transaction price if it was purchased
in the current reporting period and its carrying amount at the end of the reporting period.

Investments and other assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into US Dollar amounts at the date of valuation. Purchases and sales of securities and income
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Notes to financial statements (continued)
3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(g} Net incomeloss from financial instruments at FVTPL fcontined)

and expense ilems denominated in foreign currencies are translated into US Dollar amounts
on the respective dates of such transactions.

Reported net realised foreign exchange gains or losses resulting from changes in foreign
exchange rates on investments and from other transactions denominated in foreign cwrrencics
are included in the net gain or loss on mvestments and net exchange gain or loss on forcign
currency transactions, respectively, in the statement of comprehensive income,

th) Net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable units

The Trustee stands possessed of the assets of the Trust in a trust fund for the Trust’s
unitholders subject to the provisions of the Master Trust Deed and the Appendix. The Trust
classifies financial instruments issued as financial liabilities or equity instruments in
accordance with the substance of the contractual terms of the instruments. The Trust has two
classes of redeemable units in issue. These are the most subordinate classes of financial
instruments of the Trust and the units rank pani passu in all material respects. The two classes
have identical terms and conditions other than currency of denomination, the portfolio assets,
distribution rates and minimum issue size. The redeemable units provide the unitholders with
the right to require repurchase for cash at a value proportionate to the unitholders™ share in
the Trust’s net assets at each repurchase date and also in the event of the Trust™s liquidation.

Due to the differing features of each class of financial instrument, the Trust’s redecmable
units are classified as financial liabilities in accordance with IAS 32, This liability is
measured at the amount which the Trust is obligated to pay upon repurchase, which is based
on the trading net asset value caleulated in accordance with the Trust’s offering documents.

(i} Net asset value per unit

The net asset value per unit 15 caleulated in accordance with the Master Trust Deed by
dividing the Trust’s net assets attributable to the holders of the redeemable units in cach class
by the number of outstanding units in each class.

() Taxation

The Trust is exempt from paying taxes on ils income, profits or capital gain in the Cayman
Islands. The Master Trust has received an undertaking from the Governor in Cabinet of the
Cayman [slands exempting it from all local income, profit and capital taxes for a period of 50
vears from the date of establishment of the Master Trust. Accordingly, no provision for
income taxes is included in these financial statements.

ikl Distributions

Distributions made to qualifying unitholders are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income on an accrual basis,
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Notes to financial statements (continued)

4

Financial risk management

The Trust’s investment portfolio comprises of investment in CAT Bonds, other insurance linked
sccuritics and Currency Forwards, The Trust’s investing activitics expose it to various types of
risk that are associated with the financial instruments and markets in which it invests. The most
important types of financial risks to which the Trust are exposed to are market risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The nature and extent of the financial instruments outstanding at the statement of
financial position date and the risk management policies employed by the Trust are discussed
below:

fa) Market risk

Market risk embodies the potential for both losses and gains and includes price risk, cumrency
risk and interest rate risk.

The Trust’s strategy on the management of investment risk is driven by ils investment
objective and investment restrictions stated out in its offering documents, The Trust seeks to
provide investors with income gains through investing mainly in CAT Bonds amongst other
insurance linked securities. In selecting the Trust’s portfolio of investments, the Sub-
Investment Manager takes into account the following factors:

e Iis analysis of CAT Bonds and the related markets (including. without limitation, the
trend of CAT Bonds, the reéinsurancs market and investment trends in that sector);

s  The risk characterization (including, without limitation, earthquake and hurricane) of
cach CAT Bond: and

* The region and spread level of cach CAT Bond.

In addition to the above factors, the Sub-Investment Manager, as far as possible, manages the
debt instruments so as not to invest in CAT Bonds having Japanese relevant risk.

The Sub-Investment Manager secks to diversify the type of perils or the geographical focus
of the CAT Bonds it invests in for the account of the Trust taking into account the type of
perils and/or the geographical focus of overall market of the CAT Bonds, The CAT Bonds to
which the Trust may gain exposure through direct investment are generally unleveraged
structured notes which are issued by special purpose vehicles (“SPV™). The relevant SPV
assumes the risk of occurrence of defined events and fully funds its exposure to such risks
through the issue of CAT Bonds to collateralize and directly pass on the risk generated from
entering into risk transfer contracts with a sponsor.

The Investment Manager seeks to hedge foreign exchange rate risk for Unitholders by
entering into the following Currency Forwards:
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Notes to financial statements (continued)
4 Financial risk management (continued)
{a) Market risk foontinued)

e In relation to the USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units, the Investment Manager
implements a strategy designed to hedge the USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units®
exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations between USD {in which the USD Semi-Annual
Distribution Class Units are denominated) and currencies other than USD.

# In relation to the JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units, the Investment Manager
implements a strategy designed to hedge the JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units'
exposure o foreign exchange fluctuations between JPY (in which the IPY Semi-Annual
Distribution Class Units are denominated) and currencies other than JPY,

The Sub-Investment Manager tracks the difference of the CAT Bonds® nisk characteristics
against a reference index on a monthly basis. The benchmark index that the Sub-Investment
Manager uses is Swiss Re Global Cat Bond Performance Index Total Retumn.

The Sub-Investment Manager manages the investments of the Trust in accordance with the
investment objectives and strategies of the Trust, making sure that necessary and
economically rational steps are taken to prevent the Trust’s assefs from being used or
invested in violation of the investment restrictions of the Trust. The Investment Manager
carries out investment management activities in accordance with internally prepared and
periodically updated investment guidelines. The Manager advises the Trustee of any
investment management decisions or other investment management activities required as a
result of occurrences or circumstances outside of the ordinary course of business,

(i} Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of the investment will fluctuate as a result of changes
in market prices, whether caused by factors specific to an individual investment or its
issuer or factors affecting all instruments traded in the market,

As the Trust’s investments are carried at fair value with fair value changes recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income, all changes in market conditions will directly
affect the net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable units and change in net
assets attributable to the holders of redeemable units,

The Trust’s investments, which are mainly CAT Bonds, are issued as floating rate
securities, in which the investor receives a set coupon spread over an index (or return on
high-quality collateral, which is typically invested in short-term money market funds),
The index (or collateral retum) resets periodically based on the prevailing short-term
interest rates, CAT Bonds® price is inversely related to the spread achieved by investors,
which 15 a function of modelled expected loss and other market factors, such as peril zone,
pereeptions of risk, market trends, economic turmoil, ete.
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Notes to financial statements (continued)

4

Financial risk management {continued)

fal Market risk feontinued)

{1} Price risk fcontinued)

The following table sets out the concentration of debt instruments held by the Trust as at
August 31, 2019 and August 31, 201 8.

August 31, 2019
Market value % Holdings
UsD

Country*®

United Kingdom T35.794 1.83
Ireland 2368828 5.90
Bermuda 27.639.137 68.79
Cayman Islands 0.471.897 16.11
Singapore 234,003 0.58
Other 2,729,763 6.79
Tuotal 40,179,422 100.00

" The country classification is based on country of incorporation,

August 31, 2018
Market value % Holdings
UsD

Country*

United Kingdom 502,138 0.91
Ireland 5.246.356 0.4%8
Bermuda 36,216,069 65.43
Cayman Islands 859809 16.01
Other 4,522,419 8.17
Tuotal 55346,791  100.00

* The country classification is based on country of incorporation.

In general, there is a concentration of specific catastrophe risks in specific regions such as
hurricanes in the United States, which represents a high portion of the overall risk of
CAT Bonds. Therefore, in the case of oceurrence of these events, the price of these CAT
Bonds may significantly decrease and the Trust may significantly incur losses.
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Notes to financial statements (continued)
4 Financial risk management (continued)
{a) Market risk foontinued)
(i} Price risk fcontinued)

The Trust’s investments are concentrated in the following perils:

August 31, 2019

Market value % Holdings

USsD

Peril
Multi-peril 25 471,060 63.39
Earthquake 5954316 14.82
Flood T14.600 1.78
Pandemic 2,250,151 5.60
Wind 5,068,704 1262
Wildfire 720,591 1.79
Total 40,179,422 100.00
August 31, 2018

Market value % Holdings

USD

Peril
Multi-peril 29088158 5256
Earthquake 12,309,055 22.23
Flood 500,988 0.91
Pandemic 4,113,050 743
Wind 0,335,540 16.87
Tuotal 55,346,791 1. 04

The Trust mainly invests in CAT Bonds in accordance with the investment policy of the
Trust. The risk management framework that the Sub-Investment Manager applies to the
Trust consists of three risk monitoring activities. which are (1) Daily monitoring of any
single CAT Bond’s weightage not to exceed 10% of the latest net asset value of the Trust:
(2) Daily monitoring of any single bond issuer’s weightage not to exceed 33% of the
latest met asset value of the Trust, and (3) Monthly calculation of 1% annual Value at

Risk indicator { VaR.).

As at August 31, 2019, the 1% annual VaR of the Trust is USS 17,859,064 (20185:

LSS 21,808,867), which represents the maximum loss at occurrence probability once

every 1000 vears.
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Notes to financial statements (continued)
4 Financial risk management (continued)
{a) Market risk foontinued)
(i} Price risk fcontinued)

In recent years, a concentration of sponsors (such as insurance companies and
counterparties of re-insurance contracts) and issuers has developed in the CAT Bond, As
a resull of such concentrated exposure, the Trust may incur greater losses than a
diversified fund which invests in a wider range of sectors and issuers as well as a result of
entire or partial losses of the principal of the CAT Bonds due to the occurrence of natural
catastrophes,

Mo debt instrument and issuer exceeded 10% and 35% respectively of the net assets
attributable 1o the holders of redeemable units at August 31, 2019 (2018: nil).

(1i) Tnterest rate risk

The Trust's interest-bearing financial asscts and liabilities expose it to risks associated
with the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rales on its
financial position and cash flows. In general, the interest rate risk of fixed income
securitics is higher than floating income securities. Therefore, the value of fixed income
securities will be more subject to decline than that of floating income securitics because
of rise of interest rates.  As nominal interest rates rise. the value of the Trust is likely to
decrease. A nominal interest rate can be described as the sum of a real interest rate and an
expected inflation rate.

Fixed income securities and floating income securities with longer durations tend o be
more sensitive o changes in interest rates, usually making them more volatile than
securities with shorter durations,

In general. CAT Bonds are usually issued as floating income securilies, which are less
sensitive to changes in interest rates, as the coupon is partially linked to changes in the
interest rate, However, the residual maturities of the underlying monev market
instruments generally cause some minor interest rate risk,
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Notes to financial statements (continued)
4 Financial risk management (continued)

{a) Market risk foontinued)

{iih Interest rate risk fcontimed)

Less than Alore iham Mom-inferes
Amgusd 31, 2019 sl dmsenth - ] veay 1-3years ey hiaring Iua
[ S TSI TSI TSI USD

Asmels
Invement in debt

{Ecstrumedits, ol fasr

value 20,604 538 19874784 - - - 40179422
[eexivative financial

imsruments, al fair

value : : - - 486,853 455,453
Irfegest receivable . . . . 411368 A11368
Urneetiled trade:

eege vable - E . . 158 00 1503 000
Orther assls - . . . 3727 42927
Cash A58 ETE . A58 ET2
Tatal aswein 20,948 510 19574, 7584 - - 2043578 414TRATY
Liuhilitkes

Dhegavative financial
imstruments, al fair

valii - . . . 20,994 20,994
Aocrued EXpEnTEs = * v - 1198315 119525
Totsl lkahicies

(encluding el el

uiiribuinble iwihe

old era of redecmahle

umbisj - - - - 150,319 150,319
Taial imterest

semeltivity gup 20.540.510 19474754 . . 2,793,249 41328848

Less iban Al oire iham P om-Enl e
Amgust 11, 201% Lmenth Lmeath ] vour l-ironrs FLi. o3 bearing Istal
s s s U5 s Lig b

AieE

Invedment in debt

imstrumenia, al fasr

value 13,998 200 41,330,291 * . . 236,701
Deerivative financial

imenmends, ol Tair

valuoe - 50,480 50,480
Intexest receivable . 445555 443265
Orther assls = - - 101973 100,573
Cash 1,135 588 ] . : : 1,135 588
Total asueis 15,833 088 41,350,241 : - S95.01% 57,080,417
Liubilifkes
[hegavative finsncial

imstruments, al fair

valug B . . - 20557 20557
Accrued expenses . . . . 142610 142610
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(encluding med iz
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A — m—— m— R
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4 Financial risk management (continued)
fal Market risk feontinued)
fiih fnterest rate risk (continued)
Interest vate sensitivity analysis
The volatility of interest rates movement for the current period is derived from a change
of 25 basis points {“bps”) in interest rates at the statement of financial position date. This

analysis assumes that all the other variables remain constant.

Effect on net assets of a
change in interest rates

25 bps 25 bps
Increase Decrease
Ush USD
August 31, 2019
Net impact to net assets atiributable to
unitholders {10,045) 10,045

Effect on net assets of a
change in interest rates

25 bps 25 bps
Increase Decrease
USsD USD
August 31, 2018
Net impact to net assets attributable to
unitholders {13,837) 13,837

The duration for the debt instruments held as of August 31, 20019 is 0.1 (2018: 0.1).

The Trust’s exposure to cash-flow interest rate risk by financial assets and liabilities
comprises primarily of cash, which are held at variable short-term market interest rates.
The impact of changes in market interest rates on these balances is not significant to the
Trust.,

firi) Currency risk

The Trust may invest in financial instruments and enter into transactions denominated in
currencies other than its functional currency, Consequently, the Trust is exposed to risks
that the exchange rate of its functional currency relative to other foreign currencies may
change in a manner that has an adverse effect on the value of that portion of the Trust’s
assels or liabilities denominated in currencies including its functional currency, US
Dollar.
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Notes to financial statements (continued)
4 Financial risk management {continued)
{a) Market risk fcontinued)
fiti) Currency risk {continmed)

The following table sets out the Trust’s total exposure to foreign currency risk in US
Dollar equivalent at August 31, 2019 and August 31, 2018:

JEY ELUR Tuotal
Augusl 31, 20019 s LS Usn
Assels
Cash 34,953 6663 41,616
Investment in debl instruments, at fair value . 1,365 053 1 368 053
Interest receivable - 2487 487
Other asseis 504 - 10,504
Tolal assels T2.210 1377540 1.448.750
Lialxilities
Accrued expenses - - -
Tatal liabilities (excluding met assels atiribwtable (o
e heelcher s of redeemable units) - - =
Forward forelgn exchunge contracts 15,930,574 (1.377.492) 18,553,482
Total net exposure 20,003,154 45 20,003,232
JPY EUR Total
August 31, 2018 UsD USD USDH
Assels
Cash 0,389 - &, 380
Investment m delst instruments, at fair value . 3,725,559 3,725,593
Interedt recenvable - 30,072 10,072
Cher assels G082 - 60,083
Total assels G471 3. 755 665 1822136
Linbilities
Accrued expenses - - -
Total labilities (excluding met assets atiributable to
the holders of redeemable unkts) - - -
Forward foreign exclungs contracls 24,210,836 (3,700,858} 20510978
Total el exposaire 14.257.307 43,807 24333114

Amounts in the above tables are based on the carrying value of assets and labilitics and
the notional value of forward foreign exchange contracts.
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Notes to financial statements (continued)
4 Financial risk management (continued)
{a) Market risk foontinued)
{iii) Currency risk {continued)
Sensitivity analvsis

The net exposure to foreign currency risk of the monetary assets and liabilities at August
31, 2019 was USS 20,003,232 (2018: USS 24,333,114). At August 31, 2019, had the US
Drollar strengthened by 5% in relation to all currencies, with other variables held constant,
net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable units and change in net assets
attributable to the holders of redeemable units per the statement of comprehensive
income would have decreased by USS L000.161 (2018: USD 1,216.656). A 5%
weakening of the US Dollar against the above currencies would have resulted in an equal
but opposile effect on the basis that all other variables remain constant.

bl Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation or commitment that it has entered into with the Trust, The carrying amounts of
financial assets best represent the maximum credit risk exposure at the statement of financial
position date.

The CAT bonds in which the assets of the Trust are invested may be subject to the risk that
the principal or interest of such instruments may not be paid. Adverse changes in the financial
condition of the issuer may impair the ability of the ssuer to make payments of interest and
principal. The inability (or perceived inability) of issuers to make timely payments of interest
and principal may affect the value of sccuritics held for the account of the Trust.

In particular. the price of CAT Bonds may significantly decrease as a result of a CAT bond
issuer’s defaults or the possibility of its defaults due to the oceurrence of natural catastrophes
and the spread of pestilence or exceeding trigoer points defined in the bond s terms.

Credit risk 15 mitigated by undertaking transactions with an approved broker and other
reputable financial institutions. The Trust’s financial assets are also held in custody with
established and approved counterpartics. All transactions in listed sccuritics are settled/paid
for upon delivery using an approved broker. Payment is made on a purchase once the
securitics have been received by the broker. The trade will fail if cither party fails to meet its
obligation. The Trust determines concentration risk in relation to exposure to individual
counterpartics.
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Substantially all of the assets of the Trust are held by the Custodian. Bankruptey or
insolvency of the Custodian may cause the Trust’s rights with respect to investments and cash
and cash equivalents held by the Custodian to be delaved or limited. The Trust monitors its
risk by monitoring the credit quality and financial positions of the Custodian.

The table below summarises the Moody's credit rating of banks and custodians in which the

Trust’s assets are held as at August 31, 2019 and August 31, 2018,

August 31, 2019

Bank
The Bank of Mew York Mellon

Custodian
The Bank of Mew York Mellon

Counterparties of financial derivatives
The Bank of Mew York Mellon

August 31, 2018

Bank
The Bank of Mew York Mellon

Custodian
The Bank of Mew York Mellon

Counterparties of financial derivatives
The Bank of Mew York Mellon

130/216

Fair value Credit rating

USD
355,872 Al
40,179,422 Al
450,483 Al

Fair value Credit rating

USD
1,135,588 Al
35,346,791 Al
0,480 Al
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Notes to financial statements (continued)

4 Financial risk management (continued)

icl Liguidity risk

Investment of the Trust’s assets in relatively illiquid securities may restrict the ability of the
Manager to dispose of the Trust's investments at a price and time that it wishes to do so.
Furthermore, resale of such investments may at times be limited by contractual provisions,
which may itself have an impact on the value of such investments. It is also possible that an
exchange may suspend trading in a particular instrument or contracl, order immediate
liquidation and settlement of a particular instrument or contract or order that trading in a
particular instrument or contract be conducted for iquidation only. The risk of illiquidity also
arises in the case of over-the-counter transactions. There may be no regulated market in such
instruments or contracts, and the bid and offer prices will likely be cstablished solely by
dealers in these instruments or contracts. Investment in non-marketable sccuritics carries
liquidity risk. In addition, such securitics are difficult to value, and the issuers of such
securitics are not always subject to the rules of a regulated market for the protection of
investors,

In general CAT Bonds have low liquidity and limited market participants and the market
price of CAT Bonds in the secondary market may be highly volatile. Therefore, the sale
prices of CAT Bonds may be significantly discounted to the preceding prices of these CAT
Bonds. Furthermore, some CAT Bonds may not have a secondary market and it may be
necessary Lo find buyvers for these CAT Bonds in over-the-counter transactions. In such case,
the sale prices of CAT Bonds may be significantly discounted the preceding prices of these
CAT Bonds and, as a result, the Trust may significantly incur losses.

Furthermore. in case the Trust receives substantial subscriptions in a short period of time and
cannot identify sufficient CAT Bonds to invest in while complying with the investment
restrictions, the Trust may be required to temporarily hold substantial amount of cash. As a
result, the Unitholders exposure to CAT Bonds will be diluted.

In addition, the Trust may suspend and/or cancel the repurchase and/or subscription of units
of any class of units in significant circumstances such as the occurrence of significantly
catastrophes 1o be in the best interests of Unitholders.

Financial liabilities other than net assets atiributable to the holders of redeemable units have
residual contractual maturities of less than three months,

fa) Other risks
Volarility risk
The prices of derivative instruments are highly volatile. Price movements of forward
contracts. are influenced by, among other things, interest rates, changing supply and demand

relationships, trade, fiscal. monetary and exchange control programmes and policies of
governments, and national and international political and cconomic events and policies.
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Notes to financial statements (continued)
4 Financial risk management (continued)
(e} Other risks (continued]
Valatifity risk (contimed)

In addition, governments from time to time intervene, directly and by regulation, in certain
markets, particularly markets in currencies and interest rate related futures and options. Such
intervention often is intended directly to influence prices and may, together with other factors,
cause all of such markets to move rapidly in the same direction because of. among other
thimgs. interest rate fluctuations.

Techniques and instruments risk

The use of techniques and instruments also involves certain special risks, including (i)
dependence on the ability to predict movements in the prices of invesiments being hedged
and movements in interest rates, (ii) imperfect comrelation between the hedging instruments
and the investments or market sectors being hedged., (iii) the fact that skills needed to use
these instruments are different from those needed to select investments, and (iv) possible
impediments to effective portfolio management or the ability to meet repurchase requests,

Farly termination of the Trust

Although the final repurchase day of the Trust is scheduled for December 1, 2163, the final
repurchase day will be brought forward should a Compulsory Repurchase Event oceur.

Unless the Trust is terminated in accordance with the provisions described in the offering
documents, the units will be compulsorily repurchased upon the first to occur of any of the
following:

(i) The net asset value on any valuation day on or after 1 July 2022 is USS10,000,000 or less,
and the Manager determines that all units should be compulsorily repurchased: or

(i) The Trustee and the Manager agreeing that all of the units should be compulsorily
repurchased. (each a Compulsory Repurchase Event™)
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Notes to financial statements (continued)

5 Fair value measurements

The Trust classifies fair value measurement wsing a fair value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurement. The fair value hierarchy has the
following levels:

¢ Ouoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1),

s Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (as prices) or indireetly (derived from prices) (Level 2).

s Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable
inputs) (Level 3),

The level in the fair value hicrarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorised in its
entirety is determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement in its entirety. For this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the
fair value measurement in its entivety. If a fair value measurement vses observable inputs that
require significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that measurement is a Level 3
measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its
entirety requires judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or liability.

The determination of what constitutes “observable’ requires significant judgment by the Trust.
The Trust considers observable data to be market data that is readily available. regularly
distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprictary, and provided by independent
sources that are actively involved in the relevant market.

Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss
The table below analyzes the financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss at

August 31, 2019 and August 31, 2018 by the level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair
value measurement is categorised:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
August 31, 2019 L=l LS Lsh LsD
Financial assel at fair value
through prafit or foss
Investment in debt imstruments - 40,170,422 - 40,179,422
Drerivative financial instruments - 486,483 - 486 483
- 400,665,905 - 40,665,905
Financial liabilities at fair value
Hrongh prafit or loss
Derivative financial instruments - {20 594 - {200 94y
- (20,994 - (20,994

fad
fad
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Notes to financial statements (continued)
5 Fair value measurements (continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value threugh profit or loss {continied)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
August 31, 2018 UsD UsD Ush UsD
Financial asset af fair value
through profit or loss
Investment in debt instruments - 55,346,191 - 535,346,191
Derivative financial instruments = 50,480 = 30,480
- 55,397,271 - 55,307,271
Financial liabilities at fair value
throngh profit or loss
Denvative financial instruments - (20,557 - (20,557)
= (200557 = [(200.557)

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are valued
based on quoted market prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by
observable inputs are classified within level 2. These include investment in CAT Bonds and
currency forwards.

The investment in CAT Bonds is valued in accordance with the policies described in Note
3a)iv). The price of the CAT Bonds is derived from the 4 brokers” bid and asks prices. These
brokers are main market makers in the CAT Bonds market, and they caleulate their prices based
on CAT Bonds transaction prices that are available and open to the public. using their own
pricing model. If there is no transaction available, the brokers caleulate the bond price from the
market data of similar bond, There is sufficient information available to measure fair values of the
bonds based on observable market inputs. However, it is possible that the estimated values may
differ significantly from the amount that might ultimately be realised in the near term and the
difference could be material,

Financial instruments not measured ot foir value through profit or loss
The financial instruments not measured at fair value through profit or loss include:

(1) Cash, interest receivable, unsettled trades receivable, other assets and accrued expenscs,
These are short-term financial asscts and financial liabilitics whose carrying amounts
approximate fair value, because of their short-term nature,

{11} Met assets attributable to the holder of redeemable units. The Trust routinely repurchases
and issues the redeemable units at the amount equal to the proportionate share of net
assets of the Trust at the time of repurchase, caleulated on a basis consistent with that
used in these financial statements. Accordingly, the carrving amount of net assets
attributable to the holder of redecmable units approximates their fair value, The units are
categorised into Level 2 of the fair value hicrarchy.
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Notes to financial statements (continued)

5 Fair value measurements (continued)
Derivarive financial instruments
The Trust enters into currency forward contracts. A currency forward contract is an agrecment
between two parties to buy or sell a curreney at a specified price, at a specified quantity and on a
specified future date. At inception, there is no exchange of principal amounts and the net
receivable or payable position is settled on maturity, Currency forwards are used to control and

hedge foreign exchange sk attributable to JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class and USD Semi-
Annual Distribution Class.

The following currency forward contracts were outstanding at the reporting date:

August 31, 2019

No, of Receivable Payable Fair Value (net)

Maturity date contracts UsD UsSD USD
September 13, 2019 4 486,483 (20.994) 465,489
Total 486,483 {20.994) 463,489

August 31, 2018

No. of Receivable Payable Fair Value (net)

Maturity date contracts UsD USDy UsD
September 14, 2018 2 30,480 (20.557) 20923
Total 50,480 {20.357) 29,923

The cwrrencies purchased and sold in the currency forward contracts included: United States
Dollar, Euro and Japanese Yen, which are in line with the investment objective of the Trust,

The following table sets out the notional exposures on the currency forward confracts.

August 31, 2019 Fair value Notional value
UsD Usn

Derivative assels

Currency forward contracts 426,483 21,062475

Derivative labilities
Cuirency forward contracts {20,994 (2,980,483
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Notes to financial statements (continued)

5

Fair value measurements {continued)

Derivative financial instruments (continued)

August 31, 2018 Fair value Motional value
Usn Usn

Derivative assets

Currency forward contracts 400,450 14,170,356

Derivative liabilities

Currency forward contracts {20.557) (3.680,301)

ffsetting financial assets and financial finbilities

The Trust discloses the inpact of offsetting assets and Liabilities represented in the statement of
financial position to enable users of the financial statement to evaluate the effect or potential
effect of netting arrangements on its financial position for recognised assets and labilities. These
recognised asscts and liabilities are financial instruments and derivative instruments that are
cither subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement or meet the

following right of setoff critenia: the amounts owed by the Trust to another party are determinable,

the Trust has the right to set off the amounts owed with the amounts owed by the other party, the
Trust intends to set offl and the Trust’s right of setofl is enforceable at law.

As of August 31, 2019, the Trust holds financial instruments and derivative instruments that are
eligible for offset in the statement of financial position and are subject to a master netting
arrangement. The master netting arrangement allows the counterparty to net any collateral held on
behalf of the Trust or liabilities or payment obligation of the counterparty against any liabilities or
payment obligations of Trust to the counterparty.

Financial assets and liabilities subject to enforceable master netting arrangements and similar
agreements as at August 31, 2019 are as follow:

Gross nmount s of Kelated amaants nol ofTsel in the statement
recog nised Mnancial of Mnancial position
HETIC LY IWMI‘IIH' 11}
the statement of Financkal Cash collateral Mot "
Mnancial position instrumentsa) received{a) el o
[11]]
Derivative assels
Currency forward
conlFacls
The Bank of Mew
York Mellon 486,483 {20,904} . 465 459
Total 486483 (20904} : 465 423

ik
(=2
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(iffsetting financial assets and financial labilities (continued)

Derivative Habilities

Currency forward
oontracis

‘The Bank of Mew
York Mellon

Tatal

Gross amounts of Related amounis not ofTset in the statement
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recognised fAnancial of Mnancial position
liabilitkes presented
In the statement of Financial Cash collateral et "
Minancial pos tion instrumentsa) pledgedia) e
(h)
(20,584 ) 20,904 =
(20504 ) 20,504 -

i These amounts are lmited to the dervative assel or habilities balances and

accordingly do not include any excess collateral received or pledged.

1 These amounts presented in the statement of financial position are not netted ofT and
consequently the gross value equals the net value,

Financial assets and liabilities subject to enforecable master netting arrangements and similar
agreements as at August 31, 2018 are as follow:

Derivative assets

Currency forward
contracts

The Bank of Mew
York Mellon

Taital

Gross amounts of

Related amounts not ofTset In the statement

recognised financlal of Mnancial pasition
nsseds presenied in
the statement of Financlal Cash collateral P
Mnancial posdtion instrumentsta) receivediag ’
()
50,480 (20,557 204923
50,480 (20.55T) 25923
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Notes to financial statements (continued)

5 Fair value measurements {continued)

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabiities (continued)

Gross wmounts of Feel atestl snpponnnts mad olTsel in Che statement
recognised financial of Minancial pesition
liabilithes presented
I the statement of Financlal Cush collateral ,
TNnancial position instruments(a) Pletigedis) MNet amount
]

Derivative Habdlities

Currency forward

contracts

The Bank of Mew

York Mellon (20,557 20,557

Total {20,557} 20,557

i) These amounts are limited to the derivative asset or liabilities balances and
accordingly do not include any excess collateral received or pledged.

) These amounts presented in the statement of financial position are not netted ofT and
consequently the gross value equals the net value,

[ Net income from financial instruments at FVTPL

Net income from financial mstruments at FVTPL consists of the following:

For the period

August 15, 2017

For the yvear {date of
ended August  establishment) to
31,2019 August 31, 2018

USD UsD
Interest income 3,590,970 378,051
Gross realised (loss) gain on debt instruments at fair
value through profit and loss (199,692) 4,002
Gross unrealised loss on debt instruments at fair value
through profit and loss (1.936,791) {1.373,898)
Gross realised gain'{loss) on derivative financial
instrument at fair value through profit and loss 41.628 {12,987)
Gross unrealised gain on derivative financial instruments
at fair value through profit and loss 435,360 20,923
Net income from financial instruments at FVTPL 1.931.681 1,025,181
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Notes to financial statements (continued)

7 Net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable units
The movements in the number of units issucd and fully paid are as follows:
Issued and fully paid

JPY Semi-Annual LIS Semi-Annual

Distribution Class Distribution Class
(umnits) (umnits)

Balance at August 31, 2018
273,478.014 3287246037
Issue of units - To.622.471
Repurchase of units (53.287.337 (1,040,908, 4406)
Balance at August 31, 2019 220,190.677 2.319.960.662

Issued and fully paid

JPY Semi-Annual USD Semi-Annual

Distribution Class Distribution Class
(units) (units)

Balance at August 15, 2017 (date of
establishment) - -
Issue of units 284,478,038 3,287.240,637
Repurchase of units (11.,000.024) -
Balance at August 31, 2018 273478014 3,287.246,637

In respect of the USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units for the initial offer period, the
minimum initial subscription is 10,000 units and thercafter in further one unit increments. For
subsequent subscriptions the minimum initial subscription is USS100.,000 and thereafter in further
US80.01 increments.

In respect of the JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units for the initial offer period, the
minimum initial subscription is 1L000 units and thereafter in further one unit increments. For
subsequent subscriptions the minimum initial subscription is JPY 10,000,000 and thereafter in
further JPY 1 increments.

The issue price is USS10.00 per unit in respect of USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units and
JPY 10,000 per unit in respect of the JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units,

After the initial issue of units, an eligible investor may subscribe for units on any subsequent
subscription day at the relevant subscription price. The subscription price shall be, in respect of
each unit purchased of a class of units on any dealing day, an amount equal to the net asset value
per unit of such class of units as at the valuation point on the valuation day immediately
preceding such dealing day.
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Notes to financial statements (continued)
7 Net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable units (continued)

Investors wishing to submit units of a class of units for repurchase on a repurchase day must
submit a repurchase notice to the Administrator by no later than 6.00 p.m. (Tokyo time) on the
repurchase notice day which immediately precedes such repurchase day or such other time or
times on such day or days as the Manager may, in its sole discretion, detenmine,

A repurchase day shall be the third business day of cach month on which no Trust termination
disruption event occurs and/or such other day or days as the Manager may from time to time
determine in respect of the Trust or a class of units,

The repurchase notice day shall be the 10th calendar day of each month, or, if such day is not a
business day, the immediately following business day, or such other date or dates as the Manager
may determine.

Unitholders will be able to receive an amount in respect of cach unit of a class of units
repurchased on any repurchase day prior to the final repurchase day equal to the net asset value
per unit of such class of units calculated as at the valuation point on the valuation day
immediately preceding such repurchase day as may be adjusted pursuant to the swing pricing
adjustment.

In the event that repurchase notices representing 10% or more of all issued units of a class of
units have been received or the Manager and Trustee determine that the liquidation of the
investments of the Trust would not be practicable or would be prejudicial to unitholders, the
Manager. in consultation with the Trustee, may elect to postpone a unitholder’s repurchase. in
whole or in part, in such manner as the Manager may determine.

Diistribtitions

The Manager may, following consultation with the Investment Manager, determine that
distributions be pavable in respect of each class of units on a semi-annual basis on each
distribution declaration date, taking inte account factors including but not limited to the net
investment income, net realised and unrealised capital gains and capital attributable to the
relevant class of units and recerved during the relevant distribution period.

Distributions will be made to those persons shown as the registered holders of units on the
distribution record day immediately preceding such distribution declaration date. The Manager
may, following consultation with the Investment Manager, where it deems appropriate, elect that
a distribution be paid in whole or in part out of investment principal attributable to the units (and
which may also be in excess of any capital gain) over a distribution period, where it deems that
the amount of net investment income, net realised and unrealised capital gains and capital
attributable to the relevant class of units received during the relevant distribution period to be
insufficient of itselfl to fund that semi-annual distribution.
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Notes to financial statements (continued)
7 Net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable units (continued)
Dristributions feontinued)

The Manager may also elect that a semi-annual distribution is not payable in respect of units for a
relevant distribution period, notwithstanding its option 1o use the investment prineipal attributable
to the wnits. Circumstances where the Manager may make such an election, include but are not
limited to where it determines in its sole discretion that application of the Trust's investment
objectives and policies have generated a negative performance over the previous six months or
have underperformed to the extent that the Manager deems, following consultation with the
Investment Manager, it appropriate to make such an election.

Upon the termination of the Trust, the Trustee will distribute to the existing unitholders in
proportion to the units held by them, all cash proceeds derived from the realization of the assets
of the Trust. The Trustee may retain the necessary cash proceeds for provision for all costs, debts,
liabilities, charges., expenses, claims and demands properly incurred or made by the Trustee and
whether or not incurred or made in connection with or arising out of the termination.

Diuring the year ended August 31, 2019, there were distributions of USS262.589 (2018: nil) to the
holders of redeemable units.

8  Related party transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other parly or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions,

Credit Suisse International acts in capacity as Fee Agent of the Trust, and represents a related
party by virtue of its ability to exercise significant influence by virtue of common ownership by
their ultimate parent company, Credit Suisse Group AG. The Fee Agent is entitled to receive a
Fee Agent fee of 0.12% per annum of the net asset value acerued on a daily basis and caleulated
as at each valuation day out of the assets of the Trust, Total Fee Agent fee for the yvear amounted
to USD38.968 (2018: USD57,153) with USD9176 (2018: 11,554) outstanding accrued fees
payable to the Fee Agent at the end of the vear.

The Manager is a related party by virtue of its power to issue units under the Trust Deed and by
virtue of common ownership by the ultimate parent company, Credit Suisse Group AG. The

Manager is entitled to receive out of the fee agent fee a management fee of USS5.000 per annum
pavable monthly in arrears, paid by the Fee Agent,
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Notes to financial statements (continued)
8  Related party transactions (continued)

The Investment Manager is a related party by virtue of its responsibility for the discretionary day-
to-day investment decision-making responsibility over the Sub-Advised Portfolio and the
management of the Currency Forwards: which is delegated by the Manager by the terms of the
Investment Management Agreement. The Investment Manager is entitled to receive a fee of
0.70% per annum of the net asset value accrued on a daily basis, caleulated as at each valuation
day and pavable quarterly in arrears out of the assets of the Trust. Total Investment Manager fee
for the yvear amounted to USD344,647 (2018: USD333,624) with USD33,525 (2018: USDGT,400)
outstanding acerued fecs payable to the Investment Manager at the end of the year.

The Sub-Investment Manager is a related party by virtue of its responsibility for the day-to-day
investment decision-making over the Sub-Advised Portfolio; which is further delegated by the
Investment Manager by the terms of the Sub-Investment Management Agreement. The Sub-
Investment Manager is entitled to receive a fee of 0.50% per annum of the net asset value accrued
on a daily basis, caleulated on each valuation day and paid by the Investment Manager out of the
investment manager fees. Total Sub-Investment Manager fee for the vear amounted to
USD246,176 (2018: USD 238.303) with USD38,232 (2018: USD438,143) outstanding accrued
fees payable to the Sub-Investment Manager at the end of the vear,

The Trustee is a related party by virtue its affiliation with the Trust due to its possession of
complete authority over the operations and management of the Trust. The Trustee is entitled to
receive a fixed annual fee of USS10,000 per annum payable annually in advance out of the assets
of the Trust. The Trustee is also reimbursed out of the assets of the Trust for all out-of-pocket
expenses properly incurred by it in the performance of its duties.

9  Subsequent events

Subsequent to August 31, 2019, and as at December 23, 2019, the Trust has recorded
subscriptions of US5179.945, repurchases of US%58,333,283 and distributions US521.978.

In preparing these financial statements, management has evaluated and disclosed all material
subsequent events up to December 23, 2019, which is the date that the financial statements were
available for issue.
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Credit Sinisee Management (Cavmang Limited

Fimancial starements jor the year ended 31 Deceniber 2018

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the Year Ended

31 December 2018

Reference
1o Mole
2018 2017
Statement of profit or loss (USI)
Interest income 22.534 11,246
- of which Interest income from instruments at amortised cost 22,534 11,246
Net interest income’ 4 22,534 11,246
Service Fee Income 5 205,000 190,000
Other revenues 8 41
Bt .o oo 2752 201,287
General, administrative and trading expenses 6 (121.067) _(111.931)
Operating profit before allowance and taxation® 106,475 89,356
Profit before tax 106475 89,356
Income lax expense 7 — —
Profit after tax 106,475 89,356

"Comparative figirer hme been reclassified io condorm with cusress year presentsiios fod memm other than (Bose highlighted m focinote ? below. Refer ta Woe

15 For further information

Tt Company ha initiafly spplsed IFRS 15 and 9 as @ | Janusry 2008 However, comparmive tnfarmatven ik nol restated under these transition methods: choses,

The notes on pages 8 to 18 form part of these financial statements.
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Credit Swisse Momagement ({Cavman) Limined
Financial Jru."cmen.r:_,l"ﬂlr the year ended 31 December 2018

Statement of financial position at 31 December 2018

Reforenee
1o Mode
2018 2n7
Assets (USID)

Cash and due from banks 9 1.213.367 1,016,181
Other assels 10 206,873 299,223
Total assets 1.420.240 1,315,404

Liabilities (USD)

Other liabilities 10 3,735 5,374

Total liabilities 3,735 5,374
Shareholders’ equity (USD)

Share capital 11 735,000 735,000
Retained earnings 681,505 575.030
Total shareholders® equity 1,416,505 1,310,030
Total liabilities and shareholders® equity 1,420,240 1,315,404

'Comparative figuares have been reclasified 10 conform with cemen year presentation for items cther than those highlighied in footrmote 2 below, Refer 1o Mot
L5 for farther infomustion
The Coampamy hes inisially applicd IFS 14 and ¥ s 2 1| Janusry 3018, However, comparative information i not restmied under these transition methods chosen

" i . . %
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on ||1,||'r ob| 26 Nicolas Papavoine

Director
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited

Director

et i Tttt

The notes on pages § to 18 form part of these financial statements,
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Credit Swisse Management (Cayman) Limired
Financtal statements for the vear ended 31 December 2018

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2018

Share Retained

capital ___ earnings Total

2018
2018 Statement of changes in equity (USD)

_Balance at 1 January 2018 735,000 S75.030 1,310,030
Profit for the vear — 106,475 106,475
Balanee at 31 December 2018 735,000 681,505 1,416,505
27
2017 Statement of changes in equity (USD)

_Balance at 1 January 2017 735.000 485,674 1.220.674

_Profit for the year = = 89,356 89,356

_Balance at 31 December 2017 735,000 575,030 1,310,030

The notes on pages § to 18 form part of these financial statements,
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Credin Sisse Managemen! (Cayman) Lumited
I"Jm:rrl‘a'n".:rﬂremur.r_fa.r the year ended 31 December 2008

Statement of cash flow for the year ended 31 December 2018

Pelereme
la Mot

2018 2017"
Cash flows from operating activities (USD)
Profit for the year 106,475 §9,356
Adjustments to reconcile net profit to net cash
generated from operating activities
Non-cash items included in net profit before tax
and other adjustments:
Interest income 4 (22,534) (11,246)
Unrealised gain and loss (8) 4n
Cash generated from before changes in operating
assets and liabilities 83,933 78,069
Net decrease in operating assets:
Other assels 52,358 176,907
Net decrease in operating assets 92,358 176,207
MNet (decrease)/inerease in operating liabilities:
Other liabilities and provisions {1.639) 1,856
Net (decrease)increase in operating liabilities (1,639) 1,856
Income taxes paid — —
MNet cash generated from operating activities 174,652 256,832
Cash flows from financing activities (USI)
Interest income 4 22,534 11,246
Net cash generated from financing activities 22,534 11,246
Met inerease in cash and cash equivalents 197,186 268.078
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 1,016,181 748,103
Cash and ecash equivalents at the end of year
(USD) 1,213,367 1,016,181
Cash and due from banks 9 1,213,367 1,016,181
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 1,213,367 1,016,181

'Comgerstive fiperes have been reclassified 1o confom with cement year presencason for itema other than those highlighted in fooimote 2 below, Referio Note
15 for fanber infoemation.
*The Company has initially applsed IFRS 15 and 9 as m | January 1018, However, comparative information is not restaied amder these transition methods chasen

The notes on pages 8 to 18 form part of these financial statements.

7
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Credis Surlsse Managemenr (Cayman) Limited
Fimancial siarements for the vear ended 31 December 2018

Notes to the financial statements

1. Principal activities

Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (the “Company™) is incorporated in the Cayman Islands
with limited liability. The Company’s principal activities are the creation of trusts and the
administration and management of assets in the trusts. The Company’s registered office is ¢/fo Maples
Corporate Services Limited, P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman K'Y 1-1104, Cayman Islands.

8 Significant Accounting Policies

fa)  Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs™), which collective term includes all applicable individual International
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards (“*1ASs™) and Interpretations issued
by International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB™). A summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Company is set out below.

() Basis of preparation of the financiel statements
The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical cost basis,

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and wvarious other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

fc) Forelgn currency

The company's functional and presentation currency is US Dollars (USD). Foreign currency
transactions during the year are translated into United States Dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into United States Dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated into United States Diollars using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates,
Mon-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined. Foreign
currency differences arising on retransiation are recognised in profit or loss,
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Credit Switse Marnagemenr (Cavmen) Liovited
Finerrcial :&r]'mr.l.n':ﬁ.r the year ended 31 December 2018

2, Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
{il) Cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand with banks, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

fe) Other assels

Onther assets are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated al amortised cost less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2(g)), except where the receivables are interest-free loans
made to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less impairment for bad and doubtful debts.

(¥ Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Company has a legal
or construetive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to seitle the obligation and a reliable estimate cash be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

fe) Tmpairment

The carrying amount of the Company's assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
determine whether there is any objective evidence of impairment. [fany such objective evidence exists,
the asset's recoverable amount is estimated at the end of each reporting period. An impairment loss is
recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses are recognised in the profit or loss.

Under IFRS 9, the new impairment requirements apply primarily to financial assets measured at
amortised cost. The impairment requirements have changed from an incurred loss model under IFRS 9
to an expected credit loss (“ECL") model under IFRS 9 by incorporating reasonable and supportable
forecasis of future economic conditions available at the reporting date. The adoption of this does not
have a material impact to the Company's financial statements.

i) Revenue recognifion

Provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue and
costs, if’ applicable, can be measured reliably, management fee income is recognised in profit or loss
when the investment management service is provided.

9
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Credit Swisse Managemens (Cayman) Lininea
Financtal statements for the vear ended 31 December 2018

Z Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
{i) Expenses

All expenses are recognised in profit and loss on an accrual basis,
(1] Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be related to the Company if*
(2) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the Company if that person:
(i)  has control or joint control over the Company;
(i)  has significant influence over the Company; or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Company or the Company’s parent.

{b)  An entity is related to the Company if any of the following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Company are members of the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(ii)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member),

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third party and the other entity is an associate of the third
party.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the
Company or an entity related to the Company.

{vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

k) Standards and Interpretations effective in the current period
The Company has adopted the following amendments in the current year:
IFES 9: Financial Instruments (effective | January 2018)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: In July 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments' (IFRS 9)
as a complete standard which replaces 1AS 39, The Standard includes requirements for recognition and
measurement, impairment, derecognition and general hedge accounting. The Company elected, as a
policy choice permitted under IFRS 9, to continue to apply hedge accounting in accordance with 1AS
39, until at the latest the requirements on macro hedging are finalised and released. The amendments to
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures” resulling from [FRS 9 also require new disclosures as well
as the revision of current disclosure requirements. IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2018,

In October 2017, the IASB issued Prepayments Features with Megative Compensation (Amendments
to IFRS 9). The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with
early adoption permitted, The Company yearly adopted this amendment as at 1 January 2018,

10
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Credis Suisse Monagesvemt (Cayman) Livited
Fimanctal statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Changes in accounting policies resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9 are generally applied
retrospectively; however the Company has taken advantage of the exemption allowing it not o restate
comparative information for prior periods.

The adoption of this amendments does not have a material impact to the Company’s financial statements.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers: In May 2014, the |ASE issued IFRS 15 ‘Revenue
from Contracts with Customers’ (IFRS 15). IFRS 13 establishes a single, comprehensive framework
for revenue recognition. The core principle of IFRS 15 requires that an entity recognise revenue to
depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. [FRS
15 also includes disclosure requirements that enable users of financial statements to understand the
nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with customers.
IFRS 15 replaces existing revenue guidance in IFRS.

In April 2016, the [ASB issued Clarifications to [FRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracis with Customers’
(Clarifications to IFRS 15). The Clarifications to IFRS 15 are intended to address implementation
questions that were discussed by the Joint Transition Resource Group for Revenue Recognition on
licenses of intellectual property, identifying performance obligations, principal versus agent application
guidance and transition. IFRS 15 and Clarifications to [FRS 15 are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after | January 2018,

The Company adopted the guidance in IFRS 15 and Clarifications to IFRS 15 on 1 January 2018 using
the cumulative effect transition approach with a transition adjustment recognised in retained earnings
without restating comparatives. As a result of adoption, Company did not have any material changes
due to timing of the recognition of certain fees. In assessing whether an entity’s promises to transfer
goods or services to the customer are separately identifiable, the objective is to determine whether the
nature of the promise, within the context of the contract, is to transfer each of those goods or services
individually or, instead, to transfer a combined item or items to which the promised goods or services
are inputs. As a result of the Company assessment of performance obligations within advisory contracts,
the Company identified changes in the timing of the recognition of certain fees in the investment
banking capital markets business.

Changes in Accounting Policies

The LASB has issued a number of amendments to IFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Company. Mone of these developments have had a material effect on how the Company's
results and financial position for the current or prior periods have been prepared or presented in Mote
2(k).

The Company has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not vet effective for the current
accounting peried (MNote 17).

11
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Credit Suisee Managemens (Cayman) Limited
Financial starements for the year ended 11 December 2018

MNet Interest income

2018 2017
MNet Interest Income (USD)
Interest income on cash and due from banks 22,534 11,246
Interest income 22,534 11,246

All the above interest income on instruments are at amortised cost.
Service Fee Income

The principal activities of the Company are the creation of trusts and the administration and
managemeant of assets in trusts,

Revenue represents investment management fee income earned from fellow subsidiary as follows:

2018 2017
_Revenues (USD)
Service Fee Income 205,000 190,000
Total revenues 205,000 190,000
General, Administrative and Trading Expenses
2018 2017
General, administrative and trading expenses (USD) -

Other commission expenses (1.315) {1,311}
Bank charges (545) —
Trading expenses (1,860) (1,311)
_Auditor remuneration (3,117 (3,142)
Directors' remuneration (106,500 (103,033)
Professional Services (9,590) (2.445)
General and administrative expenses (119,207} (110,620)
Total general, administrative and trading expenses (121,067} {111,931

All of the above expenditures are payable to the Company's immediate holding company and the
immediate holding company setiles such expenditures on behalf of the Company.

Taxation

There are no taxes on income or gains in the Cayman Islands and the Company has received an
undertaking from the Governor in Council of the Cayman Islands exempting it from all local income,
profits and capital taxes until 18 January 2020. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is included
in these financial statements,
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Credit Swizse Mamagement (Cayman) Limited
Financtal stetemarnrs for the vear snded 31 December 2018

Unconsolidated Structured Entities
Sponsored wnconsolidated siructured entities

The Company considers itself the sponsor of a structured entity when either its name appears in the
name of the structured entity or in products issued by it or there is a general expectation from the market
that the Company is associated with the structured entity or the Company was involved in the design or
set up of the structured entity and has a form of involvement with the structured entity. For
unconsolidated structured entities that were sponsored by the Company but no interest was held, the
Company did not receive investment management fees from these entities during the reporting period
and no assets were transferred to these entities.

The below unconsolidated structured entities are sponsored by the Company where no management fee
is received and no interest is held by the Company as at 31 December 2018:

o HOLT® Japan Income Plus Strategy Fund (For Qualified Institwtional Investors Only})

The below unconsolidated structured entities are sponsored by the Company where a fixed annual
management fee of USD 5,000 (2017: USD 5,000) is received but no interest is held by the Company
as al 31 December 2018:

Asm Equity Income Plus Strategy Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

‘Global REIT Income Alpha Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

Australian ngh Dlv:dfnd 'Equity Twin Alpha Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Dnl:,.r}
US REIT Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only}

Daiwa Australian High Dividend Equity Alpha Fund (For Qualified Inst:tunonal Invesmrs Dnly}
Prmmpal / CS Canadian Equity Income Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

CS Global REIT Triple Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only) -
US High Dividend Equity Fremtum Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
US Small Cap Equity Premium Fund {For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
‘Daiwa Emerging Local Market Bond Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Ont:,-]
J-REIT Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

US Preferred REIT Income Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Gniy}

Japan Equity Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

Euro Stock Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

NE/MYAM US REIT Income Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
Daiwa UK High Dividend Equity Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
AMP Australia Income Bond Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
‘Brazil Equity Alpha Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
Daiwa Brazilian Real Bond Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

US Value Equity Concentrated Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
Nissay Japan Equity Active Fund (For Qualified Institutional [nvestors Only)

AMP Australia REIT Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
J-REIT and Real Estate Equity Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
Shinsei European Bond Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

13
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Credit Sulsse Mamagemens (Cayeman) Limired
Fenancial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

Unconsolidated Structured Entities (continued)

Daiwa American High Dividend Equity Quattro Income Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors
Only) —

Daiwa American REIT Quattro Income Fund {-Fnr Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
US REIT Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

Shinsei World Wrap Fund Stable Type (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
Shinsei World Wrap Fund Growth Type (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

'US REIT Triple Engine Plus Fund (For Qualified institutional Investors Only) =
Japanese Government Bond 17-20 Year Ladder Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
Australia REIT Fund

Australia REIT Plus Fund = -

US Treasury 5-7 Year Ladder Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

US Municipal Bond Fund

Tokio Marine CAT Bond Fund
Downside Contrel Equity Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only) -
Global High Dividend Equity Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
Meister's Collection

The Company has not provided financial or other support to consolidated structured entities that it was
not contractually required to provide,

The Company does not currently have the intention to provide financial or other support to
unconsolidated structured entities that it is not contractually required to provide.

Cash and Due from Banks

Cash and cash equivalenis comprise:

2018 2017
_Cash and due from banks (USI))
Cash and due from banks 1,213,367 1,016,181
Total cash and due from banks 1,213,367 1,016,181

14
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Credti Snisse Management (Cayman) Limd
Fimancial satemenis for the year ended 31 December N

10, Other Assets and Other Liabilities

2018 2017
Lther.assets. (UsD),
Interest and fees receivable 206,873 192,723
_Others — 106,500
_Total other assets 206,873 299,223
2018 2017
Other liabilities (USTY)
Interest and fees pavable 3.735 5,374
_Total other liabilities 3,735 5,374
11. Share Capital
fa) Authorised and isswed share capital
2018 2017
MNo. of shares USD MNo. of shares UsD
Authorised:
Ordinary shares of USD 1 each 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1.000.000
Issued and fully paid up:
Ordinary shares 735,000 735,000 T35.000 735,000

The holders of erdinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at general meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally
with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

) Capital management

The Company’s primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, by pricing
services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.
As the Company is part of a larger group, the Company’s sources of additional capital and policies for
distribution of excess capital may also be affected by the group's capital management objectives. The
Company defines “capital” as including all components of equity.

The Company's capital structure is regularly reviewed and managed with due regard to the capital
management practices of the group to which the Company belongs. Adjustments are made to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions affecting the Company or the group, to the extent
that these do not conflict with the directors” fiduciary duties towards the Company.

The Company was not subject to externally imposed capilal requirements in the current period,
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Credis Suisse Maragement (Cayuan) Limited
Financial satemenis for the year ended 31 December 2018

12.  Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign currency risks arises in the normal course of the
Company's business. These risks are managed by the Company’s financial management policies and
practices described below,

(@)  Credit risk

The Company’s credit risk is primarily attributable to amounts due from group companies and cash at
bank. Credit risk is defined as risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss to
another party by failing to discharge an obligation. Management regularly monitors its risk exposure
to ensure that its credit risk is kept to a minimal level. The maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the statement of financial position after
deducting any impairment allowance.

b Liguidity risk

The Company’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to satisfy its contractual and
reasonably foreseeable obligations as they fall due,

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, all of the Company’s financial liabilities, which includes all ereditors
and accruals, are on demand or undated and are expected to be settled within three months,

fc) Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk only to the extent that it earns bank interest on cash and
deposits. At 31 December 2018 and 2017, a change in interest rates would have no direct material
effect on the carrying value of the recognised assets or liabilities of the Company.

() Foreign currency risk

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through certain transactions which give rise
to payables that are denominated in Hong Kong dollars (*HKD™).

As the HED is pegged to the United Statés dollar (*LISD"), the Company considers that the risk of
movements in exchange rates between the USD and the HKD to be insignificant.

{el Fuair vialues

The carrving amounts of the Company’s financial instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair value as at 31 December 2018,
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Credis Swisse Management (Cayman) Limited
Financial sigremenis for the year ended 31 December 2018

13. Material Related Party Transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the
Company entered into the following material related party transactions

a) Related party balance sheet transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the
Company entered into the following material related party transactions in the normal course of business

31 December 2018 Jl December 2017
Parent Fellow Total Parent Fellaw Total
Group Group
Companies Companics

Assets (USIN)

(hher assels — 205,00 205,000 — 191,632 191,632

Jotal assets = 205,000 205,000 = 191,632 191632
Liabilities and Equity
(USD)

Other lighilities — - — 1871 1,632 3,503
Share capital 735,000 — 735,000 T35.000 — 735,000
Total liabilities and
sharcholders’ equity T35,000 — 735,000 736,871 1,632 738,503

b) Related party revenues and expenses
A December 2018 Al December 2007
Fellow Fellow
Group Group
Parent f_'nmpaui:g. Total Parent Cumpaniu Total
Other revenues
(LIS
Other revenues = 205,000 205,000 = 190,000 190,041
¢) Remuneration of Key Management Personnel
Remuneration of Key Management Personnel (LSD) 2018 2017
Shoat-term employes benelis 105, 500 105,033
Total Remuneration of Key Mansgement Personnel lﬂﬁ'm lus‘m
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Credit Swisse Managemens (Cayman) Limited
Fingnetal statements for the year ended 31 Decenber 2018

Parent and Ultimate Holding Company

At 31 December 2018, the immediate parent of the Company is Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited,
which is incorporated in Hong Kong and the ultimate controlling party of the Company is Credit Suisse
Group AG, which is incorporated in Switzerland. Credit Suisse Group AG produces financial
statements available for public use,

Reclassification of Comparative Figures
The Company financials have not been re-stated.

In 2018, the Company being a financial institution, has changed its presentation from current and non-
current assets/ liabilities to the order of liguidity as it provides more relevant information. In addition,
the Company has also amended the presentation of its statement of income as it provides further
information of revenues and expenses. On account of this change in presentation, the comparative
amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation. The presentation is now
in line with that of similar entities within the CS Group as it enhances the comparability of the financial
statements. Refer to 2017 financial statements for amounts of each item or class of items presented
under the erstwhile presentation.

Non-Adjusting Events after the Reporting Period
There are no material non-adjusting events for 2018,

Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2018

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the 1ASB has issued a number of amendments and
new standards and imerpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2018 and
which have not been adopted in these financial statements,

18
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Elian Trustee Cayman Limited

2019 12 100
10,956
Intertrust N.V.
The Bank of New York Mellon

2019 11 3,500

1,243 5,060
2017 30 6,000

7,300
2019 12 80
2020
405 2019
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Credit Suisse International

2019 12 113 6,600
12,453
1990
1985 2500199 1990
2000 27
2006 16
E14 4QJ 44 20 7888 8888
1990 16

Credit Suisse AG
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KPMG

P.O. Box493

Century Yard, Cricket Square
Grand Cayman KY 1-1106
Cayman Islands

Telephone +1 345 949 4800
Fax +1 345 949 7164

Internet www.kpmg.ky

Independent Auditors Report to the Trustee
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financia statements of Tokio Marine CAT Bond Fund (the "Trust"), a sub-trust of
Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) I, which comprise the statement of financial position as at August 31, 2019,
the statements of comprehensive income, changes in net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable units and cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in al material respects, the financial position of the Trust as at
August 31, 2019, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ("ISAS"). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the "Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements" section
of our report. We are independent of the Trust in accordance with International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants ("IESBA Code") together with ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financia statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with |
FRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financia
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Trust’'s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting

unless management either intends to liquidate the Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Trust's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditors Report to the Trustee (continued)

Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
mi srepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Trust’
sinterna control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.
Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors report to the related disclosures in the financia statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditors report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Trust to ceaseto
continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

KPMG

December 23, 2019
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Independent auditor's report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (the “Company”) set
out on pages 4 to 18, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, the statement of
profit and loss and other comprehensive income and the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flow
for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the financia statements give atrue and fair view of the financia position of the Company as at 31
December 2018 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standard (“1FRS’).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAS’). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code’) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitiesin accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Information other than the financial statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the information
included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financia statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materialy inconsistent with the financial statements or our

knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a materia misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent auditor's report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Responsibilities of the directors for the financia statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRS and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’ s responsibilities for the audit of the financia statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
This report is made solely to you, as abody, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will aways detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of userstaken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professiona judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the Audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.
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Independent auditor's report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s interna control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the financia statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in interna control that we identify during our
audit.

Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’ s Building

10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong
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